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VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT

VISION

The Company is committed to keep its focus on improving its core competencies
and its clients’ needs thereby, keeping the Company as one of the leading sugar
and ethanol manufacturing unit as well as the provider of bulk storage services in
the country with a purpose of creating enhanced value for its stakeholders, its
community and overall economy of Pakistan.

MISSION

To be a profitable Company with an expert management team, motivated
and productive employees and satisfied clients.

To remain consistent with management philosophy to always observe the
accepted standard of fair-conduct in dealing with employees, customers,
suppliers and others.

To keep shareholders informed and ensure timely dissemination of all material
information to them and concerned regulators.

To keep the Company always compliant with Corporate Governance rules and
all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

To keep the workplace and working environment safe, clean and comfortable
for all employees.

To be a partner with the community in all efforts to preserve healthy
enlivenment, ecological balance, heritage and overall quality of life.
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NOTICE OF 34TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 34th Annual General Meeting of Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited will be held at
Movenpick Hotel, Karachi on Tuesday, January 28, 2025 at 11:30 AM as well as through online meeting to
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the minutes of the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on
January 25, 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended September 30, 2024,
together with the reports of the Auditors' and Directors' thereon.

3. To declare and approve the cash dividend for the year ended September 30, 2024 on the ordinary shares
of the Company. The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend at 250% i.e. Rs. 25 per share. This
is in addition to the interim dividend 250% i.e. Rs. 25.00 per share already paid. The total dividend for 2023-
24 will thus amount to Rs. 868.115 million i.e. Rs. 50 per share.

4, To appoint auditors for the ensuing year, and to fix their remuneration. The retiring auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim
& Co. Chartered Accountants, being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment for the year 2024-
2025.

5. To elect eight directors as fixed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the provision of Section 159
of the Companies Act, 2017 for a term of three years commencing from January 29, 2025. The names of
retiring directors are as follows:

i.  Mr. Zakaria Usman

ii. Ms. Asma Aves Cochinwala

iii. Ms. Darakshan Zohaib

iv. Mr. Haroon Askari

v. Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala
vi. Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi

vii. Mr. Muhammad Siddiq Khokhar

viii. Mr. Suleman Lalani

6. To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

A statement of material facts under Section 166 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed to this notice.
By Order of the Board
. -
{
Zuhair Abbas
Company Secretary
Karachi: January 04, 2025
Notes:
1. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from January 22, 2025 to January 28, 2025 (both
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days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting and payment of final dividend. Transfer requests
on prescribed format, received at the office of the Share Registrar of the Company, M/s. CDC Share Registrar
Services Limited, CDC House, 99 -B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e- Faisal, Karachi-74400 on or before
the close of business on January 21, 2025 will be treated 'in time' for the purpose of above entitlement(s)
to the transferees and/or to attend the AGM and vote at the meeting.

Election of Directors:

Pursuant to section 159(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 the Board of Directors have fixed the number of
Directors at (08) to be elected in the Annual General Meeting of the Company for a period of three (03) years
including One (01) seat for "female director' and three (03) seats for "independent directors" and Four
(04) seats for "other (executive / non-executive)" category. A person can contest elections in any one
category.

Any member who intends to contest the election of directors shall file the following documents with the
Company at its registered office not later than fourteen (14) days before the date of AGM namely:

Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for election as a Director under Section 159(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017 (the "Act"), selecting any one category stated below in which he/she intends to contest,
in accordance with the amendments made by the SECP in Regulation 7A of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the "CCG Regulations") through S.R.O. 906(1)/2023 dated July 07,
2023:

a. Independent Director
b. Female Director
C. Other Director

Consent to act as Director on Appendix to Form- 9 of the Companies Regulations 2024, duly completed
and
signed by the candidate, as required under Section 167 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

A sign declaration in respect of being:

a) He / she is Compliant with all the applicable laws and regulations including without limiting the
requirements of the CCG Regulations and eligibility criteria as set out in Section 155 of the Companies
Act, 2017 to act as director of the listed company.

b) That he/she is not ineligible to become Director of a listed company under Section 153 & 177 of the
Companies Act, 2017 or any other applicable law.

Q) That he/she is not serving as director, including as an alternate director, in more than seven (7) listed
companies simultaneously.

d) That he/she is aware of the duties of the directors under the Act, the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and other relevant laws & regulations.

A detailed profile along with official address and other Directorship (s) (for placement on the Company's
website) as required under SECP's SRO 1196 (1)/ 2019 dated October 03, 2019, together with copy of valid
CNIC/Passport and NTN.

Independent Director(s) shall have to meet the criteria laid down in Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017
and the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018. Accordingly, the
following additional documents are to be submitted by the candidates intending to give consent for the
election of Directors as an Independent Director.

[ J Declaration by Independent Director(s) under clause 6(3) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

([ Undertaking on non-judicial stamp paper that he/she meets the requirements of sub-regulation (1)
of Regulation 4 of the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations,2018

©3)
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3. Virtual Participation in the AGM Proceedings:
a. Through Electronic Means (Via Video Conferencing)

In the light of the relevant guidelines issued by the SECP from time to time, the shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the General Meeting through electronic facility arranged by the Company.
In order to attend the General Meeting through electronic facility, the shareholders are requested to
get themselves registered with the company before the time of General Meeting at agm@aasml.com;
please provide your details as follows:

Name of CNIC No. Folio No./CDC No. of Shares Contact No. Email Address
Shareholder Account No.

Online meeting link and login credentials will be shared with only those Members whose emails, containing
all the required particulars, are received at the given email address by the end of business at 02:00 p.m. on
Monday January 27, 2025. The login facility shall remain open from 11:00 a.m. till the end of the Meeting on
January 28, 2025.

4, Participation in the AGM:

All members, entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, are entitled to appoint another person in writing
as their proxy to attend and vote on their behalf. A proxy must be a member of the Company. In case of
corporate entities, power of attorney or other authority / board resolution under which it is signed or a
notarially attested copy of power of attorney lodged at the Company's Registered Office address: Pardesi
House, Survey No. 2/1, R.Y.16, Old Queens Road, Karachi at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the below mentioned guidelines as laid down by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A.  For Attending the Meeting:

i In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders whose registration details
are uploaded as per the Regulations shall authenticate his/her original valid CNIC or the original
passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii. Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. numbers and
account numbers in CDS.

iii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of
the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

i In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holders whose registration details
are uploaded as per the CDC Regulations shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.

ii. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

iii.  The proxy shall produce original valid CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

2 Proxy form will be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and valid CNIC numbers

shall be mentioned on the form.
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Postal Ballot / E-voting

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, Section 143 and 144 of the Companies
Act 2017 and under Postal Ballot Regulation, 2018, latest amendments notified through SRO dated December
05, 2022, SECP has directed all listed companies to arrange for postal ballot and e-voting for the purpose
of polling on Special Business and election of directors, if the number of persons who offer themselves to
be elected is more than the number of directors fixed under Section 159 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
Accordingly, shareholders will be allowed to exercise their right to vote through postal ballot i.e., by post
or e-voting, in the manner and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid regulations. Details will
be circulated in due course.

Circulation of Annual Report through QR Code and Through Weblink:

In accordance with the Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to SRO 389(1)/2023 dated 21
March 2023 of the Securities & Exchange Commission, the Company has obtained Shareholders' approval
in the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on January 25, 2024 to circulate the Annual Report
of the Company to Members through QR enabled Code and Weblink. The Annual Report is available through
following QR Code and Weblink. http: // www. aasml.com / invester-information / Sg&8

Transmission of Audited Financial Statements / Notices Through Email:

Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, and under
section 223(6) of the Companies Act 2017, circulation of Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual
General Meeting has been allowed in electronic format through email.

In compliance with the above mentioned requirements, members who wish to receive the Annual Report
2024 in electronic form may file an application as per the form provided on the Company's website in
compliance with the subject SRO. The members who have provided consent to receive Annual Report 2024
can subsequently request any other media including hard copy which shall be provided free of cost.

Placement of Financial Statements on Website:

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024 along with reports have
been placed on the website of the Company: https://www.aasml.com

Mandatory Information - (Email, CNIC, IBAN and Zakat Declaration):

In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 Companies (General Provisions
and Forms) Regulations, 2018 members are requested to immediately provide their mandatory information
such as CNIC number, updated mailing address, email, contact mobile/telephone number and International
Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy of their CNIC to update our records and to avoid any
non-compliance of the law. Otherwise, all dividends will be withheld in terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies
(Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017;

[ For physical shares to M/s CDC Share Services Limited
For shares in CDS to CDC Investors A/c Services or respective participant

[ Members are requested to submit a declaration (CZ-50) as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance 1980 for
zakat exemption and advise a change in address if any.

E-Dividend Bank Mandate:

As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in the case of a Public listed company, any dividend payable
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in cash shall only be remitted through electronic mode directly into the bank account
designated by the entitled shareholders.

Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to update their bank account No.
(IBAN) and details in the Central Depository System through respective participants. In case of
physical shares, to provide bank account details to our Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share Services
Limited. Please ensure an early update of your particulars to avoid any inconvenience. The e-
Dividend mandate form is also available on Company's website https:\\www.aasml.com.

Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("Income
tax Ordinance"):

The rates of deduction of withholding tax for Filers and Non-Filers as prescribed under Section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance 2001, are as under:

S.No. Nature of Shareholder Rate of Deduction
1 Filers of income tax return 15%
2 Non - filer of income tax return 30%

To enable the Company to make tax deductions on the amount of cash dividend at 15% instead of 30%,
shareholders are requested to please check and ensure Filer status from Active Taxpayers List (ATL) available
at FBR website https://www.fbr.gov.pk as well as ensure that their CNIC/Passport number has been recorded
by the participant/Investor Account Services or by Share Registrar (in case of physical shareholding). Corporate
entities (non-individual shareholders) should ensure that their names and National Tax Numbers (NTN) are
available in ATL at FBR website and recorded by respective Participant/Investor Account Services or in case
of physical shareholding by Company's Share Registrar.

Withholding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

Members who have joint shareholdings held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with separately and in
such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer or a Non-Filer and tax will be
deducted according to his/her shareholding.

If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares
and the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate,
the joint account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share
Registrar of the Company latest by the Annual General Meeting date.

Folio / CDC Name of CNIC Shareholding | Total Shares Principal /
A/c No. Shareholder Joint
Shareholder

Valid Tax Exemption Certificate for Exemption from Withholding Tax

A valid tax exemption certificate is necessary for exemption from the deduction of withholding tax under
Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Members who qualify under Clause 47B of Part IV of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and wish to seek an exemption must provide a copy
of their valid tax exemption certificate to the Shares Registrar prior to the date of commencement of Book
closure otherwise tax will be deducted according to the applicable law.

Unclaimed Dividend / Shares under Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017:

An updated list for unclaimed dividend / shares of the Company is available on the Company's website
https://www.aasml.com. These are unclaimed dividend / shares, which have remained unclaimed or unpaid
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for a period of three (3) years from the date these have become due and payable.

Shareholders are requested to ensure that their claims for unclaimed dividend and share are lodged promptly.
Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend, if any, are advised to contact our Share
Registrar M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99 -B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Karachi-74400 and collect / enquire about their unclaimed dividend, if any. Incase no claim is lodged,
the Company shall proceed to deposit the unclaimed/unpaid Account and shares with the Federal Government
pursuant to the provision of Section 244 (2) of Companies Act, 2017.

Consent for video conference facility:

Pursuant to Section 132(2) & section 134(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, if the Company receives consent
form from Shareholders holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at geographical location to
participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company
will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail
this facility please provide following information and submit to registered office of the Company:

[/ We, of , being a member of Al-Abbas Sugar
Mills Limited, holder of ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio / CDC
Account No. hereby opt for video conference facility at

Signature of Member
Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Accounts

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 all existing companies are required to convert their physical
shares into book-entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the date of commencement of
the Companies Act, 2017.

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its circular # CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated
March 26, 2021 has advised the listed companies to pursue their such members who still hold shares in
physical form to convert their shares into book-entry form.

We hereby request all such members of Al Abbas Sugar Mills Limited who are holding shares in physical
form to convert their shares into book-entry form at the earliest. They are also suggested to contact the
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited or any active member/stockbroker of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange to open an account in the Central Depository System to facilitate the conversion of physical shares
into book-entry form.

Members are informed that holding shares in book-entry form has several benefits including but not limited
to; _

Secure and convenient custody of shares

Conveniently tradeable and transferable

No risk of loss, damage or theft

No stamp duty on transfer of shares in book-entry form
Seamless credit of bonus or right shares

We once again strongly advise members of the Company, in their best interest, to convert their physical
shares into book-entry form at the earliest.

)
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 166(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017:

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the justification for choosing a person for appointment

as an independent director to be elected at the AGM of the Company scheduled to be held on January 28,
2025.

The independent directors will also be elected through the process of election of directors in terms of Section
159 and 166(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the CCG Regulations, they shall meet criteria laid down
under Section 166(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent
Directors) Regulations, 2018. The Company has exercised its due diligence before selecting a person as an
independent director and ensure that the name of independent directors are available in the databank of
independent directors maintained by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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CHAIRMAIN'S REVIEW REPORT

| am pleased to provide an overview of our performance for the year ended September 30, 2024, highlighting the
Company's accomplishments and the essential role of the Board of Directors in guiding management to meet its
responsibilities for driving value for all stakeholders.

During the year, Pakistan's economy faced a complex set of challenges, including the commodity shock resulting
from the Ukraine conflict, lingering effects from severe prior-year floods, political instability, and a sharp increase
in headline inflation. However, conditions are gradually stabilizing. The exchange rate, initially highly volatile, has
now leveled out as the government maintains a stable rate. Following a significant interest rate hike by the State
Bank last year, rates are now gradually decreasing in response to easing inflation. Additionally, political tensions
and associated instability are also subsiding.

Despite significant challenges, Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited achieved strong profitability, a testament to the
exceptional leadership of our dynamic Chief Executive Officer. His visionary decision-making was instrumental in
guiding the Company toward this substantial profit, showcasing resilience and strategic insight amid challenging
economic conditions. Furthermore, the Chief Executive led the implementation of robust corporate governance
practices, fostering a culture of professionalism and ethical business conduct throughout the organization.
There is strong confidence that, under the Chief Executive Officer's leadership, Your Company is well-positioned
to achieve profitability amid highly volatile business conditions. The strategic vision focuses on establishing the
company as a leading producer of refined sugar and ethanol in Pakistan.

There is strong confidence that, under the Chief Executive Officer's leadership, Your Company is well-positioned
to achieve profitability amid highly volatile business conditions. The strategic vision focuses on establishing the
company as a leading producer of refined sugar and ethanol in Pakistan.

With the Grace of Almighty Allah, the Company's fifth consecutive Corporate Excellence Award from the Management
Association of Pakistan, along with the third position in the "Best Corporate Award" from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants International, highlights its steadfast
commitment to upholding the highest standards of corporate practices and governance. These accolades reaffirm
the Company's enduring dedication to excellence within the sugar industry.

Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited fully complies with the requirements set forth in the Companies Act, 2017, and the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, governing the structure, procedures, and
meetings of its Board of Directors and subcommittees. In line with the Corporate Governance Code, an annual
appraisal of the Board of Directors is conducted to evaluate the overall effectiveness and performance of the Board
and its subcommittees. Areas for improvement are carefully considered. The Board recently completed its annual
self-assessment for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the overall performance of the Board and its
subcommittees was deemed satisfactory.

The Company is proud to have an independent Internal Audit department that follows a risk-based audit approach.
Quarterly, the Internal Audit reports are presented to the Board Audit Committee, where they examine areas for
improvement and discuss key aspects that require attention. This process ensures thorough oversight and supports
the continuous enhancement of the Company's operations.

As Chairman of your Company, my commitment is unwavering in leading the Board and fostering an environment
that promotes open and constructive dialogue, where all perspectives are respected. It is essential to ensure that
the Board receives insights from a diverse range of senior management. | am firmly dedicated to ensuring compliance
with all relevant codes and regulations, while our management team consistently makes decisions focused on
creating value for our stakeholders across short, medium, and long-term horizons.

The Company remains committed to investing substantial resources in improving working conditions for its
employees, with a strong focus on fostering a safe, healthy, and comfortable workplace environment.

On behalf of the Board, | extend our sincere gratitude to all our dedicated employees, whose contributions have
been instrumental in driving the Company's success. | also wish to express heartfelt thanks to our shareholders,
customers, suppliers, bankers, business partners, and all stakeholders for their unwavering confidence and support.
As we look toward the challenges ahead, the Board approaches the future with renewed confidence and enthusiasm,
ready to navigate the path forward.

%/(/

Zakaria Usman
Chairman
Karachi: January 02, 2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

In the name of Almighty ALLAH, the Most Benevolent and Compassionate, the Directors are pleased to present
this report along with the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2024.

OVERVIEW OF ECONOMY

Over the past year, our economy has encountered substantial challenges, mainly due to high interest rates and
inflation, which have suppressed demand and caused a slowdown in large-scale manufacturing. This deceleration
has also led to reduced imports, bringing the current account deficit to its lowest level in a decade, and as a result,
the PKR has remained stable against the USD.

On the political front, the federal and provincial governments has introduced much-needed stability, reduced
uncertainty, and bolstered investor confidence. This political stability is expected to enhance economic conditions
and attract foreign direct investment in key sectors.

In response to these macroeconomic challenges, the leadership of your Company is proactively implementing
strategies centered on cost optimization, risk management, and innovation to boost operational efficiency. We
remain committed to delivering value to our stakeholders and are confident in our business's strength and resilience
to navigate these challenges and adapt smoothly to evolving economic conditions.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In the 2023-24 period, Pakistan's sugar industry has shown notable resilience, recovering from recent challenges
like flood impacts on crops and economic volatility. Production is projected at approximately 7.05 million tons, a
slight increase from the previous year, reflecting a modest rebound in sugarcane cultivation area. Punjab and Sindh
continue as the leading sugarcane-producing regions, accounting for most of the national output. This increase
in production is helping stabilize domestic supplies, though the government is cautious with exports to prevent
internal price hikes.

Pakistan's sugar consumption is expected to reach 6.3 million tons, driven by population growth and industrial
demand from the food and beverage sectors. Although exports were slightly reduced from last year to avoid
domestic shortages. Domestic prices have also experienced pressure due surplus stock.

For the 2024-25 season, the sugar industry in Pakistan is projected to see a modest increase in production, with
the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) estimating an output of approximately 6.8 million metric tons,
representing a 3% rise compared to the previous year.

Furthermore, sugar consumption in Pakistan is forecasted to continue rising, driven by population growth and
increased demand from the food processing sector. Overall, while the sugar industry faces challenges, such as
regulatory pressures and fluctuating global prices, the outlook for 2024-25 remains cautiously optimistic

KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Profit before levy and taxation 1,780,554 4,008,280
Levy and taxation (229,872) (319,663)
Profit after levy and taxation 1,550,682 3,684,617
Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 89.31 212.22

The Company was blessed by Almighty Allah to secure the necessary export volume, enabling optimal utilization
of available capacities. As a result, the Company surpassed its previous record, reaching a new peak in net revenue
of Rs. 16.508 billion. A comparison of key figures between 2024 and 2023 highlights
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Description Units 2024 2023

Export Sales Rs. in million 11,439.68 10,614.63
Local sales, services and trading activities - net Rs. in million 5,068.10 3,954.60
Gross profit Rs. in million 3,611.63 4974.88
Profit before levey and taxation Rs. in million 1,780.55 4,004.28
Profit after levy and taxation Rs. in million 1,550.68 3,684.62

These results were achieved despite challenges like persistent increases in raw material and utility prices,
logistical obstacles, higher supply chain costs, and ongoing inflation.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

Despite significant challenges from the commodity
super cycle and persistent economic and political
instability within the country throughout the 2023-
24 financial year, the Company achieved a modest
increase in exports of Rs. 825.05 million, reflecting an
approximate 7.77% growth.

The Company operates state-of-the-art sugar and
ethanol facilities, committed to producing high-quality
sugar and ethanol products driven by process
excellence and innovation. Throughout the year, the
Company successfully exported its products to various
regions, including Asia, Europe and Africa.

DIVIDENDS AND APPROPRIATION

ASIA

4% __

AFRICA
44%

EXPORTQUANTITY

The Company is firmly committed to maximizing shareholder value and delivering sustainable long-term
returns. At the Board of Directors meeting on January 02, 2025, a final cash dividend of 250 % (Rs.25 per
share) was recommended. This final dividend is in addition to the interim dividends of 250 % (Rs. 25 per
share) that have already been distributed. As a result, the total dividend for the fiscal year ending September
30, 2024, will amount to Rs. 868.115 million, or Rs. 50 per share. Approval for this final dividend will be
sought at the upcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled for January 28, 2025.

The impact of the final cash dividend is not reflected in these financial statements. The allocation approved

by the Board is as follows:

(Rupees in thousands)

Profit after taxation 1,550,682
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 5,434,556
Final dividend 2023 @ Rs. 6/share (104,174)
Interim dividends 2024@ Rs. 25/share (434,058)
Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - net of tax (7,212)
Available for appropriation and Un-appropriated profit carried forward 6,439,794
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EARNING PER SHARE
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The following details pertain to the operations within the Sugar, Ethanol, Storage Tank Terminal, Power,

Chemical, and Alloys divisions:

SUGAR SEGMENT

The Government of Sindh has issued a notification setting the minimum support price of sugarcane at Rs.
425 per 40 kgs for the 2023-24 crushing season, marking a significant increase from Rs. 302 per 40 kgs in
the 2022-23 season. In recent years, these higher cane prices have allowed farmers to achieve significant
returns on their investments and have encouraged the expansion of cane plantations. However, these
elevated prices have also resulted in considerable liquidity demands for the company.

Operational Performance:

Date of start of season
Duration of season (Days)
Total days of actual crushing
Crushing (M. Tons)

Recovery %

Production from sugarcane(M.
Sales (M. Tons)

Financial Performance:

Sales

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Distribution Cost
Administrative Expenses
Operating segment results
Other operating expenses
Finance cost

Other income

Profit before levy and taxation
Levy and taxation

Profit after levy and taxation

Tons)

2023-24 2022-23
November 12, 2023 November 29, 2022
89 77
82.918 68.553
489,122 400,820
10.26 10.52
50,184 42,175
43,029 42,598
2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
4,836,875 3,805,260
(4,360,382) (3,062,524)
476,693 742,736
(16,189) (22,375)
(106,031) (103,509)
354,273 616,852
(33,924) (32,061)
(314,534) (209,370)
12,292 13,788
18,107 389,209
(35,373) (145,477)
(17,266) 243,732
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Over the year, your company saw approximately a 27.11% increase in revenue in the sugar segment, largely driven
by higher sales prices. However, finance costs rose by about 50.23%, primarily due to an increase in the Kibor rate
compared to the prior year. Additionally, the government authorized sugar exports this year in response to surplus
production and stock levels within the country. The pricing strategy for sugar sales is fundamentally based on

supply and demand economics.

The increase in domestic sugar prices over the year is largely due to the Government's decision to raise the minimum

notified price of sugarcane by around 40.73%. However, the average sales price did not fully offset the rise in cane

procurement costs, leading to losses in this segment.

REVENUE VS EXPENSES
6000

5000
4000
3000

2000

RUPEESIN MILLION

1000

® TRy | FY FY FY | FY | FY

2019 | 2020 | 2021 2022 | 2023 2024
mNet Revenue 2,946 3,543 2,801 3,008 | 3,805 | 4,837
mNetexpenses 3,032 | 3,661 | 2,700 | 2,971 3,547 | 4,854

ETHANOL SEGMENT
Operating Performance:

Production (MT) - Unit-land I
Sales (MT)

Financial Performance:

Sales

Cost of Sales

Gross profit

Distribution Cost
Administrative Expenses
Operating segment results
Other operating expenses
Finance cost

Otherincome

Profit before levy and taxation
Levy and taxation

Profit after levy and taxation

The post-tax profits for the ethanol segment declined by approximately 53.70%, driven mainly by a decrease in the

SALES VS PRODUCTION

70,000
60,000
50,000 l
40,000
30,000

20,000

QUANTITYIN MT.ONS

10,000

FY FY FY FY FY FY
2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024

m— Sales 58,631|56,810(35,213(42,062(42,598(43 029
Production |50,892|42,059(38 44053 ,045(42 175|50,184

2024 2023
43,603 45,250
47,291 40,691

11,398,163 10,283,856
(8,233,703) (6,047,743)
3,164,460 4,236,113
(1,197,030) (379,180)
(72,901) (66,311)
1,894,529 3,790,622
(111,900) (200,339)
(194,389) (167,807)
199,753 195,566
1,787993 3,618,042
(194,037) (175,361)
1,593,956 3,442,681

average sales price of ethanol combined with an increase in the average cost of raw materials.
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Molasses production is directly tied to sugar output, so any reduction in sugar production affects molasses availability.
This situation intensified competition among distilleries, decreasing market supply and driving prices higher.
However, the Chief Executive Officer of your company achieved a commendable feat by proactively securing a
substantial quantity of molasses at a competitive rate.

The management took steps to optimize the ethanol sales mix by prioritizing more profitable channels. Specifically,

there was an increased focus on Drum and ISO sales, with a slight reduction in dependence on bulk sales compared
to the prior year.

REVENUES AND EXPENSES
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OTHER REPORTABLE SEGMENT

Operations in the Chemical, Alloys, and Power segments were suspended during the review period due to rising
fuel and electricity costs.

The storage tank terminal, licensed as a customs public bonded warehouse, has a total capacity of 22,850 M.T for
handling bulk liquid cargo. It is authorized to store hazardous materials, including ethanol and other petroleum
products. Ethanol produced by your company has also been stored here to ensure timely shipment of export orders.
The decrease in capacity utilization is attributed to ongoing repair and maintenance work, lower demand and the
availability of tenants.

During this year, a loss of Rs. 26.008 million was recorded in the other reportable segment, in contrast to the Rs.
1.796 million loss incurred in the previous year.
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Future Outlook
Sugar Segment

The 2024-25 outlook for Pakistan's sugar industry has potential for growth in value-added sectors like ethanol.
However, the industry's performance will heavily depend on climate conditions, supportive government policies,
and resource management. Strategic focus on diversification and sustainability will be essential for the industry's
resilience and long-term profitability.

The sugar production expected to increase by approximately 3% due to slight gains in cane area and yields. The
total sugar output is forecasted to reach 6.8 million tons. Despite the rise in production, the export potential remains
limited, largely due to ongoing government interventions in controlling domestic prices and ensuring stable supply.

For the industry to prosper, the timely allocation of sugar export quotas could ease some of the pressure on mills,
ensuring fair compensation for growers. The Pakistan Sugar Mills Association has requested the government's
approval to export additional sugar, citing a surplus of over 1.08 million tons of sugar stocks at the start of the new
crushing season. With the international market price at approximately $562 per ton, granting export permission
would benefit both the industry and the country.

The Federal Government has directed sugar mills to begin the new sugarcane crushing season on November 21,
2024. However, the Government of Sindh has yet to announce the minimum support price for sugarcane. Based
on historical trends, it is expected that the price will see an increase, as has been the case in previous years.
Additionally, sugar mills in Sindh are required to pay a quality premium of fifty paisas for every 0.1 percent of
sucrose recovery above the benchmark of 8.7%.

According to the initial crop survey, sugarcane production in our region is projected to experience modest growth,
primarily driven by an expansion in the area dedicated to cane cultivation. Looking ahead, we expect an improved
balance between supply and demand in the coming year, which should allow domestic production to meet the
country's sugar requirements, potentially resulting in a surplus. This surplus could create more equitable opportunities
for all industry stakeholders. In response, the company is proactively focusing on developing cane-growing areas
to improve the quality of the cane, aiming to enhance recovery rates and, ultimately, boost overall productivity.

Ethanol Segment

The outlook for the ethanol industry in 2024-25 appears positive, driven by several factors that may boost its
demand and growth. As health awareness continues to rise, there is an increasing preference for natural and organic
products, which includes the use of food-grade ethanol in beverages and food products.However, challenges such
as economic instability and supply chain disruptions could pose risks, although these are being mitigated by
ongoing advancements in production efficiency and sustainable sourcing.

The ethanol segment of your company has consistently shown strong profitability over the years, making it one
of the most financially rewarding sectors within the organization. This sustained success underscores the segment's
critical role in driving the company's overall financial performance.
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The profitability and margins of this segment will be significantly affected by the unpredictable fluctuations in the
Pakistani rupee against the US dollar. Exchange rate volatility can cause substantial shifts in cost structures, especially
when dealing with international transactions. Given these dynamics, close monitoring of exchange rate movements
will be essential for managing risk and optimizing margins in this segment.

It's commendable that your management is committed to continuous improvements, particularly in ensuring a
steady supply of molasses, which is vital for ethanol production. By proactively securing the maximum quantity
of molasses needed for the upcoming year before the crushing season begins, your company is strategically
positioning itself ahead of competitors. This approach mitigates the risks of supply shortages, allowing for smoother
operations and more predictable production schedules.

Molasses, being a byproduct of sugar production, is subject to market fluctuations and availability based on the
sugarcane harvest. Securing the supply in advance ensures that your company remains insulated from potential
disruptions in the molasses market and can maintain a consistent ethanol output. This forward-thinking strategy
strengthens your market position and improves operational efficiency by reducing the potential for delays or price
spikes that could otherwise undermine profitability.

Such practices not only provide a competitive edge but also enhance the company's ability to forecast costs and
optimize margins. This proactive approach is an excellent example of sound supply chain management, positioning
your company well in a dynamic market.

Despite the challenges and uncertainties, the outlook for this segment remains promising. Key factors contributing
to this positive outlook include proactive procurement strategies, the stability of ethanol selling prices, and ongoing
management efforts to drive operational improvements. These elements suggest a favorable trajectory for the
segment moving forward. Additionally, the segment's resilience to geopolitical risks and currency fluctuations
further highlights its potential for sustained success. Overall, the future prospects for this segment appear both
optimistic and robust, positioning it well for continued growth and stability.

Other Reportable Segment

The company has secured a No Objection Certificate (NOC) from Karachi Port Trust for critical tank-specific repair
and maintenance, essential for ensuring the smooth operation of our storage business. We are optimistic that the
repair work will be completed within the upcoming year. Upon completion, the company anticipates a strong
performance from this segment, contributing positively to overall returns. This proactive step not only ensures
operational continuity but also positions the company for sustained growth and efficiency in the storage business
moving forward.

The production facilities for the chemical, alloys, and power segments have been temporarily suspended due to
current business conditions. A decision on when to resume operations will be revisited once there is a noticeable
improvement in these conditions. The company remains vigilant and will assess market trends and economic
indicators to determine the right time to restart production, ensuring optimal operational efficiency and profitability.

Overall
The company's operations are closely tied to the economic conditions in Pakistan as well as its key export destinations.

At present, the domestic economic environment is undergoing rapid changes, marked by high energy costs, supply
chain disruptions, and inflationary pressures. These factors create a complex landscape for businesses, as they must
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adapt to challenges such as fluctuating exchange rates, increased raw material prices, intense competition, and
logistical hurdles.

Despite these obstacles, the company's management is well-prepared to navigate the uncertainties posed by these
economic conditions. Strategic flexibility is key, and the company has put in place a set of dynamic strategies to
ensure sustained growth. These strategies are regularly reviewed to address emerging challenges, such as rising
costs and evolving market dynamics, while also positioning the company for long-term success.

The management's ability to stay agile and respond proactively to changing conditions will be critical in maintaining
operational efficiency and pursuing growth objectives amid economic turbulence.

We remain optimistic that the company's performance will continue to thrive and progress over the coming years,
particularly in terms of revenue growth, profitability, and liquidity. This outlook reflects confidence in the company's
ability to navigate challenges while maintaining a strong financial position.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions are conducted at arm's length and follow standard business practices, complying
with the relevant provisions outlined in the Companies Act, 2017. There have been no substantial related party
transactions involving Directors or Key Managerial Personnel that could potentially conflict with the Company's
interests or necessitate shareholder approval.

The Board's Audit Committee regularly reviewed all related party transactions, presenting their recommendations
to the Board for further review and approval. The Board, after review, sanctioned these transactions, all of which
adhered to the approved related party policy. Comprehensive details regarding these transactions are disclosed
in notes 43 and 48 within the Company's financial statements.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited's Board of Directors consists of nine members, comprising seven males and two
females. These individuals bring diverse backgrounds, core competencies, and relevant expertise aligned with the
Company's business goals. Our Board composition is designed to represent and cater to the interests of all categories
of shareholders and consists of:

i) Independent Directors: Three (3)
ii) Non-Executive Directors: Five (5) including two female directors
iii) Executive Director: One (1)*

*Mr. Asim Ghani, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is a deemed director as defined in Section 188(3) of
the Companies Act, 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has an established remuneration policy specifically for the Chief Executive Officer, which undergoes
periodic reviews by the Board, contingent upon the Company's performance. Detailed information regarding the
CEOQ's salaries and additional benefits can be found in note number 43 of the Company's financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Board has implemented a formal policy concerning Non-executive directors, which includes independent

directors. These directors are entitled to a meeting fee for their attendance at the Company's Board meetings
sanctioned at rates approved by the Board of Directors.

19)
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MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended September 30, 2024, a total of Five Board meetings were convened. The attendance record

of Directors at these meetings is as follows:

Name of Directors Status Number of meetings
attended
Mr. Zakaria Usman Chairman 5/5
Mr. Asim Ghani Chief Executive Officer 5/5
Mrs. Asma Aves Cochinwala Female Director 5/5
Mrs. Darakshan Zohaib Female Director 5/5
Mr. Haroon Askari Independent Director 5/5
Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala Independent Director 5/5
Mr. Muhammad Siddig Khokhar Independent Director 5/5
Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi Non-Executive Director 5/5
Mr. Suleman Lalani Non-Executive Director 5/5

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee plays a pivotal role in aiding the Board in fulfilling its oversight duties, particularly in reviewing
financial and non-financial information, internal controls, and the audit processes, delivering these insights to
Shareholders. Throughout the year, the Committee convened for a total of four meetings. The attendance record

of each member is as follows:

Name of Members Status Number of meetings
attended

Mr. Haroon Askari Chairman (Independent) 4/4

Mrs. Asma Aves Cochinwala Member 4/4

Mrs. Darakshan Zohaib Member 4/4

Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala Member 4/4

Mr. Zakaria Usman Member 2/4

The Audit Committee diligently assessed the quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial statements, in addition
to the related party transaction register, before presenting them to the Board. Moreover, the Committee meticulously
reviewed the findings of the internal auditor and conducted separate sessions with both internal and external
auditors, as mandated by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

The Committee convenes to assess and recommend all aspects of compensation, organizational structure, and
policies concerning the development of senior executives. Emphasizing human resource planning and management
at the highest managerial level remains a primary focus. The following details outline the names of the members
and the number of meeting attended by each member:

Name of Members

Status

Number of meeting
attended

Mr. Haroon Askari

Chairman (Independent)

11

Mr. Asim Ghani

Member

11

Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi Member 1/1
Mr. Muhammad Siddiq Khokhar Member 1/1
Mr. Suleman Lalani Member 1/1
Mr. Zakaria Usman Member 0/1
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee supports the Board by overseeing the sufficiency and efficiency of the risk
management framework and internal control system. This involves assessing operational, strategic, and external
risks, as well as reviewing all significant controls, including financial, operational, and compliance measures. During
the year one meeting was held.

Name of Members Status Number of meeting
attended

Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala Chairman (Independent) 11

Mr. Asim Ghani Member 11

Mrs. Darakshan Zohaib Member 11

Mr. Muhammad Siddig Khokhar Member 11

AUDITORS

The current auditors, M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants, have completed their tenure for the year
ended September 30, 2024, and will retire at the upcoming Annual General Meeting. They are eligible for
reappointment and have expressed their willingness for the same. Based on the Audit Committee's recommendation,
the Board proposes the reappointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants as the Company's auditors
for the financial year ending September 30, 2025. Shareholder approval for this reappointment will be sought at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting scheduled for January 28, 2025.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) represents a company's commitment to creating a positive impact on society
that goes beyond its primary business activities. Increasingly, companies recognize that their role in society extends
past the pursuit of profit and encompasses a broader duty to address pressing social needs. This responsibility
encourages businesses to actively participate in improving the welfare of the communities in which they operate.

Over the past year, the company has taken significant steps toward supporting the health sector, demonstrating
its dedication to community well-being. By investing in health initiatives, the company contributes to creating
healthier communities, enhancing the quality of life for local populations, and supporting goals aligned with
sustainable development. Such CSR efforts not only provide immediate support to those in need but also generate
lasting benefits that strengthen societal structures, build trust, and enhance the company's reputation. In fostering
this connection with the community, the company reinforces a cycle of positive impact that benefits both society
and its own long-term success.

A company's commitment to corporate social responsibility (CSR) in the health sector highlights its dedication to
societal well-being, reflecting a holistic approach that transcends mere financial success. By prioritizing health
initiatives, the company demonstrates a vision that aligns corporate goals with a sense of social duty, actively
contributing to a healthier, more prosperous future. This focus not only supports community welfare but also
strengthens the foundation for sustainable development and long-term positive impact. Through CSR in the health
sector, the company underscores its role as a responsible corporate citizen, aiming to foster a resilient society where
both the business and the community can thrive.

EFFECT OF COMPANY'S OPERATIONS ON THE ENVIRONMENT

The company is steadfast in its commitment to fostering a healthy environment by actively reducing the environmental
impact of its operations. This dedication includes strict adherence to environmental standards across all production
facilities, ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements and industry best practices. Furthermore, the company
recognizes its responsibility to contribute positively to environmental sustainability, integrating eco-conscious
practices into its operations. Through these efforts, the company aims to create a cleaner, safer environment for
all stakeholders while aligning its business goals with a broader commitment to environmental stewardship.
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The company has installed a state-of-the-art water recycling plant, a proactive measure to support environmental
sustainability and ensure the availability of safe water resources. This investment reflects a dual commitment to
environmental stewardship and resource conservation, recognizing the importance of preserving essential natural
resources for the future. In addition to water recycling, the company is also focused on minimizing its carbon
footprint. By actively pursuing carbon reduction strategies, the company acknowledges its role in protecting the
environment from the ecological impact of its operations and aligns with global efforts to address climate change.

The company routinely reviews its policies to ensure alignment with industry best practices, striving to uphold the
highest standards in its field. This approach guarantees that its operational guidelines reflect the latest benchmarks
and regulatory requirements. To reinforce these standards, the company provides comprehensive health and safety
training for employees, equipping them to work effectively and safely within these established protocols. This
emphasis on continuous training supports a culture of safety and ensures full compliance with the company's
guidelines, prioritizing the well-being of employees and the integrity of operations.

GENDER PAY GAP ANALYSIS

In compliance of SECP Circular No. 10 of 2024 dated April 17,2024, following is the gender pay gap calculated for
the year ended September 30, 2024:

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap 27%
(i) Median Gender Pay Gap -47%
Mean of Male Employee Rs. 372 per hour A
Mean of Female Employee Rs. 271 per hour B
Median of Male Employee Rs. 185 per hour C
Median of Female Employee Rs. 271 per hour D
ACHIEVEMENTS

The company has reached an exceptional milestone by winning the Corporate Excellence Award from the
Management Association of Pakistan (MAP) for the fifth consecutive year in Karachi. This prestigious award, granted
by MAP, recognizes listed companies that excel in corporate governance and management practices, setting a
benchmark for quality and leadership within the industry. The sustained achievement of this award underscores
the company's consistent dedication to operational excellence, innovative management, and high standards in
corporate practices.

The Company has also secured the third position in the Best Corporate and Sustainability Report Award by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants International.
The "Best Corporate Award" is a prestigious accolade jointly presented by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP) and the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMA). This award recognizes
publicly listed companies in Pakistan that exemplify excellence in corporate governance, financial transparency,
and sustainable management practices. Companies that receive this honor are acknowledged for their commitment
to best practices in financial reporting, ethical governance, and their contributions to Pakistan's economic growth.
This award program aims to encourage high standards across Pakistan's corporate sector, fostering a culture of
integrity and accountability. Winning this award is a notable achievement, signaling that the company's dedication
to maintaining excellence in corporate performance and enhancing investor confidence.

These awards highlight the company's unwavering commitment to delivering top-quality standards, maintaining
the highest levels of professionalism, and consistently striving for excellence in all areas of its operations. Recognized
as some of the most prestigious honors in the corporate sector, these accolades underscore the company's role
as a leader in quality and industry best practices.

BOARD'S EVALUATION

In line with the 2019 Code of Corporate Governance, the Board has approved a robust evaluation framework to
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assess its performance comprehensively. This framework includes the introduction of a detailed questionnaire that
covers the Board's roles, objectives, and functions, alongside the company's overall performance and monitoring
processes. Each director participated in this assessment by providing valuable input, allowing for a thorough
evaluation of all relevant areas. This approach ensures that the Board can accurately measure its effectiveness,
identify areas for improvement, and align its performance with corporate governance standards and strategic goals.

REVIEW OF CEO'S PERFORMANCE

The Board of Directors regularly conducts comprehensive evaluations of the CEO's performance, using both
quantitative and qualitative metrics to ensure a holistic review. These assessments cover a wide range of Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs), both financial and non-financial. The evaluation criteria include the CEQ's alignment
with the company's mission, the achievement of both short-term and long-term goals, commitment to sustaining
profitability, enhancing shareholder value, and ensuring strong corporate governance practices, along with
compliance with statutory reporting requirements. This structured evaluation process helps ensure that the CEO's
performance is aligned with the company's strategic vision and objectives.

ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CEO

The Chairman acts as the steward of the company, representing both the Board and its stakeholders. As the leader
of the Board of Directors, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring the Board operates efficiently and effectively.
In addition to overseeing the company's business development, the Chairman plays a critical role in safeguarding
the company's reputation and fostering its long-term strategic direction. The Chairman is also tasked with ensuring
the Board is well-composed, promoting a diverse range of perspectives across various business functions, economic
outlooks, and areas of expertise. This approach helps ensure balanced decision-making and strategic insight.

The CEO plays a pivotal role in guiding the company towards its vision, mission, and long-term goals. Acting as the
main conduit between the Board of Directors and the management team, the CEO ensures effective communication
across both levels. Additionally, the CEO oversees the daily operations of the company, ensuring the successful
execution of long-term strategies, plans, and budgets. This includes driving initiatives aimed at enhancing shareholder
value and ensuring that the company's objectives are met efficiently. The CEO's leadership is essential in aligning
the company's operational activities with its broader strategic vision.

The CEO also functions as the public face of the company, representing its interests to shareholders, government
entities, and the wider public. As both a leader and key decision-maker, the CEO is responsible for inspiring
employees, driving change within the organization, and making strategic decisions that align with the company's
objectives. By leading with vision and purpose, the CEO ensures that the company is poised to meet its goals and
fulfill its commitments to stakeholders, guiding the organization towards success and sustainable growth.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

Aligned with the company's commitment to transparent communication, Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited has
implemented a whistleblowing policy, supported by non-conformance reporting. This policy provides employees
with a secure and confidential channel to raise concerns, ensuring their protection against retaliation. As a responsible
and ethical organization, the company upholds the highest standards of professionalism, integrity, and transparency.
Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited remains dedicated to conducting its business in a manner that is fair, dependable,
and ethically sound, reinforcing its commitment to honesty and accountability across all levels of operation.

DEBTS SERVICING

Our company utilizes a robust cash flow strategy that emphasizes continuous forecasting and diligent monitoring
of both incoming and outgoing funds. This method ensures the company can consistently meet its financial
obligations and remain agile in addressing any potential challenges. In addition, the management focuses on
optimizing borrowing costs by maintaining a well-balanced mix of financing sources and managing debt structures
efficiently. As a result of this careful approach, our company has maintained an impeccable record of meeting all
debt obligations on time, including in the current year, with no missed payments.
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CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSION

Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited hosted a Corporate Briefing Session (CBS) on January 25, 2024, to present the financial
results for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. The session aimed to provide stakeholders with a comprehensive
overview of the company's operational and financial performance, while also gathering feedback from shareholders.
During the session, the CEO shared insights on the company's performance for the current year and discussed
future prospects. The event attracted a range of participants, including investors, research analysts, fund managers,
and management representatives, all of whom showed significant interest in the company's affairs. A Question &
Answer session followed, providing further clarification on the topics discussed. Looking ahead, the management
plans to organize another Corporate Briefing Session in January 2025, covering the fiscal year ending September
30, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITTMENTS

There have been no material changes or commitments that could significantly affect the financial position of the
company from the end of the fiscal year, as reflected in the financial statements, up until the date of this report.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL / PROVINCIAL EXCHEQUER

The Company made a total contribution of Rs. 963.045 million compared to Rs. 751.957 million in 2024 to the
Government Treasury in the form of income tax, levies, excise duty, and sales tax.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AND SHARES TRADED

The statement demonstrating the shareholding pattern as of September 30, 2024, as mandated by Section 227(2)(f)
of the Companies Act, 2017, is provided as an annexure to this report.

There were no transactions during the year involving the trading of the Company's shares by the Chief Executive,
Directors, Substantial Shareholders, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, their spouses, or minor children.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

A comprehensive Risk Management Framework is fundamental to an organization's capacity to navigate uncertainties
and challenges while pursuing sustainable growth and profitability. It involves a structured methodology for
identifying, evaluating, mitigating, and monitoring risks across all operational areas, thereby enhancing organizational
resilience and adaptability.

The Board has established a dedicated Risk Management Committee. The Company's Risk Management framework
is structured to proactively identify potential risks, perform in-depth analyses, and implement preventive measurest
o mitigate them. By adopting a forward-looking approach to risk management, the Company engages in contingency
planning to address critical risks should they arise, ensuring readiness and responsiveness to potential challenges.

The Committee has identified potential risks, assessed their possible impact on the company, and developed
strategies to mitigate these anticipated risks. These strategies have been applied across all levels of the organization
to ensure a thorough and gap-free approach to risk management.

The primary risks and challenges faced by the company include:

(i) The company relies heavily on the availability of sugarcane and molasses, which are essential raw materials
for its operations.
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(i)  Dollar-Rupee exchange rate fluctuations present a risk; a depreciation of the Rupee could positively influence
the company's profitability.

(iii)  Retaining skilled employees is critical, as they are a key asset; high turnover could adversely impact the
company's growth potential.

(iv)  The company firmly believes that industrial accidents are preventable and not merely random events; they
can be mitigated through proactive safety measures.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

The Board has established an independent internal audit function, led by a qualified professional who reports
directly to the Audit Committee. The primary focus of internal auditing within the Company is to evaluate and
assess the effectiveness of its internal control framework.

To ensure the adequacy of internal controls, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, oversees this area closely. These committees receive detailed reports from Management, Internal Audit,
and the External Auditor on the company's internal control systems and risk management protocols.

Following its review, the Board takes appropriate actions to address any significant weaknesses identified in the
internal control system. This includes implementing corrective measures deemed necessary after a comprehensive
evaluation of the control framework.

CREDIT RATING

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has affirmed the Company's long-term entity rating at A+ and
its short-term rating at A1. The "stable" outlook reflects PACRA's positive and consistent assessment of the company's
financial stability and performance.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
The company has meticulously adhered to all the stipulations outlined in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019. A comprehensive statement confirming this compliance is enclosed within this
Report, specifically detailed on pages 35 to 37.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board expresses its sincere appreciation to our esteemed Board Members, dedicated Management, and all
employees for their steadfast commitment and hard work. Additionally, the Board acknowledges the invaluable
support, guidance, and collaboration provided by all stakeholders, including financial institutions, business partners,

customers, bankers, and others, whose collective contributions have greatly strengthened the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

Asim Ghani Darakshan Zohaib
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi: January 02, 2025
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
Number of Shareholdings’ slab Total Number of
Sharesholders From | To Shares Held
432 1 100 14,798
503 101 500 222,947
65 501 1,000 58,172
74 1,001 5,000 178,217
9 5,001 10,000 67,175
3 10,001 15,000 36,500
2 15,001 20,000 35,776
1 20,001 25,000 20,075
2 25,001 30,000 56,900
1 30,001 50,000 50,000
1 50,001 60,000 59,800
2 60,001 90,000 173,323
1 90,001 135,000 130,479
1 135,001 207,000 206,600
1 207,001 370,000 370,000
1 370,001 545,000 543,883
1 545,001 595,000 592,587
1 595,001 945,000 943,027
1 945,001 965,000 964,802
1 965,001 1,030,000 1,029,289
1 1,030,001 1,715,000 1,714,500
1 1,715,001 1,920,000 1,916,368
1 1,920,001 2,310,000 2,309,250
1 2,310,001 5,670,000 5,667,832
1107 17,362,300
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
Shareholders Category Number of Percentage
Shares Held %
Associated Companies, undertaking and related parties 5,874,432 33.8344
Mutual Fund 9,900 0.0570
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children. 4,230,880 24.3682
Executives NIL NIL
Public Sector Companies and Corporations NIL NIL
NIT and ICP 544,383 3.1354
Banks, development Finance institutions, non-Banking Finance Companies,
insurance Companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 727,844 4.1921
Share holders holding 5% 14,545,068 83.7739
General Public
a. Local 2,744,550 15.8075
b. Foreign NIL NIL
Others 3,230,311 18.6053




DETAIL OF SHAREHOLDERS CATAGORIES

AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1 Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited-Employees Gratuity Fund
Haji Abdul Ghani

2 Mutual funds

Prodential Stocks Fund Limited
Cdc - Trustee Nit-Equity Market Opportunity Fund

3 Directors, CEO and their spouses and minor children

Zakaria Usman

Asim Ghani

Asma Aves Cochinwala
Darakshan Zohaib
Haroon Askari
Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala
Shahid Hussain Jatoi
Siddiq Khokhar
Suleman Lalani

Aves Cochinwala

Hira Asim

4 Executives

5 Public Sector Companies and corporations

6 NITandICP

Investment Corporation of Pakistan
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Uuit) Trust
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No. of Shares Percentage
206,600 1.1899
5,667,832 32.6445
5,874,432 33.8344
No. of Shares Percentage
600 0.0035

9,300 0.0536

9,900 0.0570

No. of Shares Percentages
100 0.0006
2,309,250 13.3004
943,027 5.4315
964,802 5.5569

100 0.0006

500 0.0029

101 0.0006

500 0.0029

1,000 0.0058

11,500 0.0662
4,230,880 24.3682
No. of Shares Percentages
NIL NIL

No. of Shares Percentages
NIL NIL

No. of Shares Percentages
500 0.0029

543,883 3.1326
544,383 3.1354

Bringing Back Sorectness
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DETAIL OF SHAREHOLDERS CATAGORIES

AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

7 Banks, development finance institutions,
Non- banking finance Companies, Insurance
Companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds

National Bank of Pakistan

Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Employees Pension Fund
Trustee National Bank of Pakistan Emp Bevevolent Fund Trust
The Bank of Khyber

8 Shareholder holding five percent or more
voting interest in the Company

Haji Abdul Ghani

Asim Ghani

Jahangir Siddiqui

Asma Aves Cochinwala

Darakshan Zohaib

Energy Infrastructure Holding (Private) Limited
Trustee - Future Trust

No. of Shares Percentage
592,587 3.4131
130,479 0.7515

4,578 0.0264

200 0.0012
727,844 4.1921
No. of Shares Percentages
5,667,832 32.6445
2,309,250 13.3004
1,916,368 11.0375
943,027 5.4315
964,802 5.5569
1,029,289 5.9283
1,714,500 9.8748
14,545,068 83.7739




st 7o
KEY FINANCIAL DATA
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Investment Measure
Ordinary Share Capital Rs.in"000" 173,623 173,623 173,623 173,623 173,623 173,623
Reserves Rs.in"000" 7,827,609 6,749,201 4,432,030 3,196,905 3,221,027 3,053,628
Ordinary Shareholder's Equity Rs.in"000" 8,001,232 6,922,824 4,605,653 3,370,528 3,394,650 3,227,251
Dividend on Ordinary Shares Rs.in"000" 868,115 972,289 954,927 694,492 868,115 868,115
Dividend per Ordinary Share Rs. 50.00 56.00 55.00 40.00 50.00 50.00
Profit Before Taxation and Levy Rs.in"000" 1,780,554 4,004,280 2,050,244 834,723 1,370,241 1,201,227
Profit After Taxation and Levy Rs.in"000" 1,550,682 3,684,617 1,913,689 751,929 1,244,347 1,111,978
Earnings per share of Rs. 10 Rs. 89.31 212.22 110.22 43.31 71.67 64.05
Price Earnings ratio x:1 6.54 2.56 281 6.67 444 3.15
Price to Book ratio x:1 0.84 0.76 0.57 0.70 0.85 0.55
Dividend Yield ratio x:1 0.09 0.10 0.18 0.14 0.16 0.25
Dividend Payout ratio x:1 0.56 0.26 0.50 0.92 0.70 0.78
Dividend Cover Ratio x:1 1.79 3.79 2.00 1.08 143 1.28
Market value per share at the end of the year ~ Rs. 584.51 543.95 310 289 318 202.00
Highest market value during the year Rs. 625.40 544.00 323.40 400.00 354.18 280.10
Lowest market value during the year Rs. 484.24 328.44 256.84 288.67 172.50 174.80
Breakup value per share Rs. 460.84 398.73 265.27 194.13 195.52 185.88
Measure of Financial Status
Current Ratio x:1 2.58 2.02 1.63 145 1.58 1.49
Quick / Acid test ratio x:1 135 1.30 0.98 0.83 1.21 1.05
Cash to Current Liabilities x:1 0.30 0.50 0.36 0.30 0.18 0.04
Cash flow from Operating

Activity to Current Liabilities x:1 (0.21) 0.46 0.06 (0.38) 0.90 0.41
Financial leverage ratio x:1 0.32 0.40 0.65 0.64 0.39 0.50
Weighted average cost of debt x:1 0.19 0.13 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.04
Debt to Equity ratio x:1 0.32 0.40 0.65 0.64 0.39 0.50
Interest Cover /Time Interest earned ratio x:1 4.60 12.01 14.07 11.76 30.03 21.59
Total Assets turnover ratio x:1 0.64 0.54 047 0.44 0.50 0.48
Fixed Assets turnover ratio x:1 11.74 10.19 7.09 497 5.09 4.38
Total Debt Ratio x:1 0.21 0.22 0.32 0.30 0.20 0.25
Number of Days Stock In days 125.33 131.97 123.39 98.42 72.90 109.90
No. of Days in Receivables In days 39.52 35.56 33.00 29.35 3294 33.11
No. of Days in Payables In days 31.14 39.32 46.43 59.49 86.04 83.81
Operating cycle In days 133.71 128.21 109.96 68.28 19.81 59.20

29)
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Measure of Performance
Sales Rs.in"000" 16,507,771 14,569,235 10,362,184 7,421,377 8,153,544 7,164,862
Cost of Goods Sold as % of Sales % 78.12 65.85 7743 84.78 74.18 75.36
Gross Profit as % of Sales % 21.88 34.15 22.57 15.22 25.82 24.64
EBITDA as % of Sales % 14.37 30.65 22.29 13.76 18.78 19.05
Operating Leverage Ratio x:1 (3.60) 2.41 3.58 3.97 0.91 2.68
Return On Equity x:1 0.19 0.53 0.42 0.22 0.37 0.34
Return on Capital employed x:1 0.15 043 0.28 0.16 0.24 0.23
Shareholders' Funds x:1 0.66 0.56 0.49 0.47 0.52 0.50
Profit Before Taxation and Levy as % of Sales % 10.79 27.48 19.79 11.25 16.81 16.77
Profit After Taxation and Levy as % of Sales % 9.39 25.29 18.47 10.13 15.26 15.52
Quanity of sugar cane crushed M.Tons 489,122 400,820 501,010 370,402 396,965 467,829
Quantity of sugar production M.Tons 50,184 42,175 53,945 38,440 42,959 50,892
Recovery of sugar production % 10.26 10.52 10.77 10.38 10.82 10.88
Quanity of Ethanol produced M.Tons 43,603 45,250 38,549 35,330 32,593 41,143
Recovery of ethanol produced % 5.07 5.16 517 5.10 5.53 5.49
Production Per Employee

-Sugar M.Tons 81.07 66.84 85.22 60.92 62.62 72.91

-Ethanol M.Tons 224.76 269.35 315.98 296.89 260.74 345.74
Revenue Per Employee Rs.in"'000"' 21,579 16,370 11,966 8,501 8,683 7,566
% of Plant Availability

-Sugar % 93.95% 90.66% 86.71% 76.00% 77.26% 96.72%

-Ethanol % 100% 99% 98% 98% 92% 95%
Others
Spares Inventory as % of Asset Cost % 2.31% 2.44% 1.96% 2.35% 2.77% 2.29%
Maintenance Cost as % of

Operating Expenses % 1.02% 2.61% 1.69% 1.80% 2.24% 3.00%
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Building a Culture of Excellence

Our Culture: Built on High Values

At the heart of our organization lies a culture deeply rooted in high values, where sustainability is seamlessly
integrated into every aspect of our operations. Transparency forms the bedrock of our workplace, fostering an
environment dedicated to delivering exceptional value to our customers.

Investing in human capital is not just a priority-it's an integral part of our growth strategy. By aligning individual
potential with the Company's objectives, we create a path to shared success. Our core values-innovation, customer-
centricity, excellence, and integrity-serve as the foundation of an efficiency-driven culture.

This culture shapes a collaborative workforce, ensuring a win-win outcome for both employees and the organization.
We take pride in staying grounded in our history while pursuing excellence, continuously acknowledging our
identity and the journey that has brought us here.

Ethics: A Commitment to Integrity

Our Code of Conduct is a testament to our unwavering dedication to ethical practices. It embodies the principles
and rules that guide our approach to business, ensuring the highest standards of honesty and integrity. At Al-Abbas
Sugar Mills Limited, every employee is accountable for creating value through transparent and responsible practices.

We diligently monitor compliance with the Code of Conduct, providing necessary information, implementing
preventive measures, and maintaining control tools to uphold transparency in all transactions and behaviors.
Corrective actions are promptly taken when required, ensuring that our ethical standards remain uncompromised.

By adhering to these principles, we deliver value to all stakeholders, including customers, communities, and
shareholders.

Our Core Values: The Foundation of Our Success

Our core values define how we conduct business, guiding our interactions with stakeholders and shaping our
principles:

1. Ethics and Integrity

[ Truthfulness: We prioritize honesty in all interactions, ensuring trust and credibility.

[ Integrity: Our actions consistently reflect our principles, creating a foundation of reliability.

o Openness and Clarity: Transparent communication fosters understanding and collaboration.

o Professional Standards and Behavior: We uphold excellence through ethical and professional conduct.

_ ‘;

2. Social Responsibilities

[ Sustainable Development: We integrate environmentally conscious practices into our growth strategies,
ensuring a lasting impact.

) Philanthropic Endeavors: Our commitment to giving back is demonstrated through initiatives that support
societal well-being.

() Community Development: We actively invest in projects that uplift and empower communities.

[ Ecological Sustainability: Protecting the environment is at the core of our operations, aligning with global

sustainability goals.
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3. Innovation

Innovative Problem-Solving: We embrace creativity to address challenges with fresh, effective solutions.
State-of-the-Art Advancements: Our dedication to cutting-edge technologies drives progress and efficiency.
Process Automation: By automating workflows, we improve accuracy, reduce costs, and enhance productivity.
Enhancing Industry Standards: We continually refine our methods, setting benchmarks for excellence in
our field.

\V Yy
VAV TSN

4. Customer Focus

([ Dedication to Customers: We are committed to building long-lasting relationships through unwavering
service.

() High Standards and Reliability: Consistently delivering quality and dependability is our hallmark.

() Understanding and Meeting Customer Needs: We actively listen to our customers, tailoring solutions to
their unique requirements.

[ Equitable Practices: Fairness and transparency guide every interaction, ensuring trust and satisfaction.

A Culture That Drives Excellence

We believe in fostering a world-class team united by shared values and a commitment to excellence. As we evolve
in a competitive landscape, our culture remains our strongest asset, enabling us to excel today while preparing for
the challenges of tomorrow.

Our history is a source of inspiration and humility, reminding us of the journey we have undertaken and the
milestones we have achieved. With these principles guiding us, we are confident in our ability to sustain growth
and deliver exceptional value to all who engage with our organization.
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Conmosition of Balance Sheet

TOTALASSETSFY 2024 TOTALASSETSFY 2023

 Property, plart and equipment & Investment property # Soesand pares 1l Preperty, plant and equiprrent o Investent property §l Steres and spares
i Trade cetis B Sock-in-rade H [nvestents i Trade debis ¥ Sodkin-trade M Investments
~ Loans and adhvances © Other assets o Loans and advances 4 Cther assets

EOLITY & LIABILITIES FY 2024 EOUITY & LIABLIMES FY 2023

o Gerecapita GReserves 4 Maket G Fee payeble w Long temfrending u Gerecapita GResenves i Maket Gt Fee payable i Long termfinending \
uTeaddhepyales  Sattemborosngs 8 Oher curent libilties uTraearddherpayles 8 Suttemborosings @ Cther curet lialtes \§
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Anancials at a Gance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF AL-ABBAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED ON THE STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited for the year
ended September 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Q\,‘: b /\

BDO EBRAHIM & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
UDIN: CR202410067axVeqFY6A

KARACHI
DATED: January 02, 2025




Annual Report 2024

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 for the year ended September 30, 2024

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

10.

11.

The total number of directors are nine as per the following:
a. Male: Seven (7)
b. Female:Two (2)

The composition of the board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Haroon Askari
Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala
Mr. Muhammad Siddig Khokhar

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi
Mr. Suleman Lalani
Mr. Zakaria Usman

Executive Director Mr. Asim Ghani*

Female Directors Mrs. Asma Aves Cochinwala
Mrs. Darakshan Zohaib

*Mr. Asim Ghani, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is a deemed director as  defined in Section
188(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company.

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The board has developed a vision and mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. The board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board.

The board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations.

Seven directors have already completed the directors' training program. The Board consists of one director
who is exempted from the directors' training program in accordance with clause 19(2) of Chapter VI of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 due to having minimum 14 years
of education and over 15 years of experience on the board of a listed Company.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the board.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Karachi:
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The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Haroon Askari Chairman
Mrs. Asma Aves Cochinwala Member
Mrs. Darakshan Zohaib Member
Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala Member
Mr. Zakaria Usman Member

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Haroon Askari Chairman
Mr. Asim Ghani Member
Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi Member
Mr. Muhammad Siddig Khokhar Member
Mr. Suleman Lalani Member
Mr. Zakaria Usman Member

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawala Chairman
Mr. Asim Ghani Member
Mrs. Darakshan Zohaib Member
Mr. Muhammad Siddig Khokhar Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

a. Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended September 30, 2024.
b. HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the year ended September 30, 2024.
¢. Risk Management Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended September 30, 2024.

The board has set up effective internal audit functions that are considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involve in
the audit are not a close relative (spouses, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of the Regulations have been

complied.
// (/

Zakaria Usman
Chairman

Dated: January 02, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AL-ABBAS SUGAR
MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AL-ABBAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a material accounting policy information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at September 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Existence and valuation of stock in trade

Stock-in-trade has been valued following an
accounting policy as stated in note 4.5 to the
financial statements. As at the reporting date,
the value of stock-in-trade as disclosed in note
12 to the financial statements amounted to Rs.
5,019 million. Stock-in-trade forms material part
of the Company's assets representing 41.23% of
the total assets.

The cost of stock-in-trade has different
components which involves judgment in relation
to the allocation of overhead costs and in
determining the net realizable value of stock-in-
trade item in line with accounting policy.

Due to the above factors, we have considered
the existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as
a key audit matter.

Contingencies

The Company is in various litigation under
different laws, regulations and interpretations
thereof and hence, there is a litigation risk. In our
judgement, the Company has significant
litigation cases as disclosed in note 32 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Given the nature and amounts involved in such
cases and the appellate forums at which these
are pending, the ultimate outcome and the
resultant accounting in the financial statements
is subject to significant judgement, which can
change over time as new facts emerge and each

Our audit procedures in respect of valuation of stock
in trade, amongst others, included the following:

understanding of internal controls over purchases
and valuation of stock in trade and testing, on a
sample basis, their design, implementation and
operating effectiveness;

performed physical count of inventory at
respective locations on a test basis;

testing, on sample basis, the purchases with
supporting documentation and contracts if any;

verified the allocation of directly attributable
costs with the underlying supporting documents;

verified the calculations of actual overhead costs
and evaluated the allocation of both labor and
overhead costs to finished goods and work in
process accounts;

obtained an understanding of management's
determination of net realizable value (NRV) and
the key estimates adopted, including future
selling prices, future costs to complete work-in
process and costs necessary to make the sale
and their basis;

Compared the NRV, on a sample basis, to the
cost of finished goods to assess whether any
adjustments are required to value inventory in
accordance with applicable accounting and
reporting standards; and

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in respect
of the stock-in-trade in accordance with the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtained understanding of the Company's
processes and controls over litigations through
meetings with the management and review of
the minutes of the Board of Directors and Board
Audit Committee.

Reviewed the correspondence of the Company
with the relevant authorities and the Company's
legal advisors including the judgments or orders
passed by the competent authorities.

Obtained and reviewed direct confirmations from
the Company's external legal advisors for their
views on the legal position of the Company in
relation to the contingent matters.

39)
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S.No.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

legal case progresses.

Due to the above, we have considered the
contingencies as a key audit matter.

Revenue recognition

The company principally generates revenue from
sale of sugar and ethanol. Revenue has been
recognized as per the accounting policy stated
in note 4.19 to the financial statements.

We have identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter as it is one of the key performance
indicator of the Company and gives rise to an
inherent risk of material misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

Discussed open matters and developments with
the in-house legal department personnel of the
Company.

Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures made in
respect of these contingencies in accordance
with the applicable accounting and reporting
standards.

Our audit procedures in respect of revenue recognition,
amongst others, included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the process
relating to recording of revenue and testing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant key controls over
recording of revenue.

Assessed the appropriateness of the Company's
accounting policy for recording of revenue and
its compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standard - Revenue from contracts
with customers (IFRS 15).

Reviewed a sample of contractual arrangements
entered into by the Company with its customers
and checking the performance obligations
involved, transaction price and recognition of
revenue based on satisfaction of performance
obligation.

Compared a sample of sale transactions recorded
during the year with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery notes and other relevant underlying
documents.

Compared a sample of sale transactions recorded
before and after the year end with relevant
underlying documentation to assess whether
revenue has been recorded in the correct
accounting period.

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements to be in accordance with
the applicable accounting and reporting
standard.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

[ ] Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
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regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) In our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980),
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section
7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

n‘\,_': i /\

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: AR20241006751b6AXsRo

KARACHI
DATED: January 02, 2025
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Right-of-use assets

Long-term investments
Long-term loans

Long-term deposits

Current Assets

Biological assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Short-term investments

Other receivables

Interest accrued

Income tax refunds due from the government
Cash and bank balances

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorized capital

40,000,000 (2023: 40,000,000) shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

17,362,300 (2023: 17,362,300) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Accumulated reserves

Non-Current Liabilities

Lease liability

Market committee fee payable
Deferred taxation

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Accrued markup

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Unclaimed dividend

Provision for levy and taxation

Total Equity and Liabilities
Contingencies and Commitments

Note

O oo~NOYWU»

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

20

21
22

23
24
25

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Darakshan Zohaib

Asim Ghani
Chief Executive Officer

Director

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

1,406,345 1,430,312
148 164
8,686 15,350
200,233 123,638
87 236
19,461 19,961
1,634,960 1,589,661
5,162 2,136
280,214 303,334
5,019,124 3,836,955
640,984 252,804
3,147,405 3,690,273
76,675 14,615
1,142,489 2,645,062
36,378 40,907
1,615 1,930
74,877 -
86,062 67,929
10,510,985 10,855,945
12,145,945 12,445,606
400,000 400,000
173,623 173,623
7,827,609 6,749,201
8,001,232 6,922,824
- 8,695
20,226 19,722
43,972 107,364
64,198 135,781
1,404,320 2,498,437
15,398 49,508
2,572,749 2,747,938
11,531 6,655
63,671 62,516
12,846 21,947
4,080,515 5,387,001
12,145,945 12,445,606

Samir Hajani
Chief Financial Officer

)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution cost
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance cost

Otherincome

Profit before levy and taxation
Levy

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

Note

33
34

35
36
37

38
39

40

40

41

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Asim Ghani
Chief Executive Officer

Darakshan Zohaib
Director

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
(Restated)
16,507,771 14,569,235
(12,896,144) (9,594,352)
3,611,627 4,974,883
(1,213,219) (401,555)
(178,932) (169,820)
(143,189) (232,089)
(1,535,340) (803,464)
2,076,287 4,171,419
(508,923) (377,827)
213,190 210,688
1,780,554 4,004,280
(154,963) (120,079)
1,625,591 3,884,201
(74,909) (199,584)
1,550,682 3,684,617
89.31 212.22

Samir Hajani
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Profit after taxation 1,550,682 3,684,617
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to statement
of profit or loss account in subsequent periods
Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income - net of tax 73,170 (14,665)
(Loss) / gain on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - net of tax (7,212) 36,204
65,958 21,539
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,616,640 3,706,156

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Asim Ghani
Chief Executive Officer

Darakshan Zohaib Samir Hajani
Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Balance as at October 1, 2022

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

Loss on remeasurement of investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation - net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners

Final Dividend 2022: Rs. 30 per share
Interim Dividend 2023: Rs. 10 per share
Interim Dividend 2023: Rs. 15 per share
Interim Dividend 2023: Rs. 25 per share

Balance as at September 30, 2023

Balance as at October 1, 2023
Total other comprehensive income
for the year

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

Gain on remeasurement of investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income - net of tax

Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation - net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners

Final Dividend 2023: Rs. 6 per share
Interim Dividend 2024: Rs. 15 per share
Interim Dividend 2024: Rs. 10 per share

Balance as at September 30, 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Asim Ghani

RESERVES
Issued, Revenue reserves Capital reserves Total
subscribed Unrealized Share
and (loss)/gain on invest- holder’s
paid-up General Unappropriated Sub total ment at fair value Total Equity
capital reserve profit through other Reserves
comprehensive
income
(Rup in thousand)
173,623 1,458,000 3,102,720 4,560,720 (128,690) 4,432,030 4,605,653
- - 3,684,617 3,684,617 - 3,684,617 3,684,617
- - - - (14,665) (14,665) (14,665)
- - 36,204 36,204 - 36,204 36,204
- - 3,720,821 3,720,821 (14,665) 3,706,156 3,706,156
- - (520,869) (520,869) - (520,869) (520,869)
- - (173,623) (173,623) - (173,623) (173,623)
- - (260,435) (260,435) - (260,435) (260,435)
- - (434,058) (434,058) - (434,058) (434,058)
- - (1,388,985) (1,388,985) - (1,388,985) (1,388,985)
173,623 1,458,000 5,434,556 6,892,556 (143,355) 6,749,201 6,922,824
173,623 1,458,000 5,434,556 6,892,556 (143,355) 6,749,201 6,922,824
- - 1,550,682 1,550,682 - 1,550,682 1,550,682
- - - - 73,170 73,170 73,170
- - (7,212) (7,212) - (7,212) (7,212)
- - 1,543,470 1,543,470 73,170 1,616,640 1,616,640
- - (104,174) (104,174) - (104,174) (104,174)
- - (260,435) (260,435) - (260,435) (260,435)
- - (173,623) (173,623) - (173,623) (173,623)
- - (538,232) (538,232) - (538,232) (538,232)
173,623 1,458,000 6,439,794 7,897,794 (70,185) 7,827,609 8,001,232
T

Chief Executive Officer

Darakshan Zohaib

Director

Samir Hajani
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 42 220,357 3,234,243
Finance cost paid (537,998) (349,718)
Workers' Welfare Fund paid - net (12,056) (9,047)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid - net (135,772) (189,996)
Market committee fees paid (4,891) (8,008)
Taxes and levy paid (376,055) (192,814)
Long term deposits paid 500 (220)
Long term loans recovered 149 1,284
(1,066,123) (748,519)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (845,766) 2,485,724
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to property, plant and equipment (73,809) (65,337)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,593 531
Investments in Mutual Funds, TDRs and T-Bills - net 1,502,573 (995,752)
Interest / markup received 19,743 83,363
Dividend received 136,436 104,892
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 1,586,536 (872,303)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term financing - (22,512)
Lease rental paid (10,371) (8,545)
Dividend paid (537,077) (1,374,689)
Short-term borrowings obtained - net (175,189) (203,298)
Net cash used in financing activities (722,637) (1,609,044)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,133 4,377
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 67,929 63,552
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 86,062 67,929

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Asim Ghani Darakshan Zohaib Samir Hajani
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited - AASML ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on May 2, 1991 as a
public limited Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017).
The Company is listed with Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - PSX. The principal activities of the Company
are manufacturing and sale of sugar, processing and sale of industrial ethanol, manufacturing and sales
of chemical, alloys and power and providing bulk storage facilities.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS
The registered office of the Company is situated at Pardesi House, Survey No. 2/1, R.Y.16, Old Queens Road,

Karachi, Pakistan. The Company's manufacturing facilities for the following business units are located at
the following respective addresses:

S.No Business Unit Principal Activities Address Commencement
of commercial
production

1 Sugar Manufacturing Deh 145, Tapo December 15,

and sale of sugar Kangaroo, Taluka 1993

Digri, District, Mirpurkhas

2 Ethanol Processing and sale of Deh 145, Tapo Unit I: August 20,
industrial ethanol Kangaroo, Taluka 2000
Digri, District, Mirpurkhas  Unit IIl: January
23,2004

3 Other reportable segment

a) Chemical, alloys  Manufacturing and Dhabeji, Tapo Gharo, November 01,

sales of calcium National Highway Road, 2006
& Power (note 2.1) carbide and ferro Taluka Mirpur Sakro,

alloys. District Thatta
Generation and April 06,2010
sales of electricity.

b) Tank Terminal Providing bulk storage Plot 63, Oil Industrial October 15,
facility Area, Kemari, Karachi. 2012

The production facilities of chemical, alloys and power segment have been suspended temporarily in view
of present business conditions.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:"

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
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2.2

2.3
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3.1

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS Standards or
IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except as disclosed otherwise.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees ('Rupees' or 'Rs. which is also the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates, assumptions
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgment was
exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Assumptions and estimates used in determining the recoverable amount, residual values and useful
lives of property, plant and equipment - 4.1 and 5

- Assumptions and estimates used in determining the recoverable amount, residual values and useful
lives of investment property - 4.2 and 6

- Assumptions and estimates used in determining the provision for slow moving stores and spares
-44and 11

- Assumptions and estimates used in writing down items of stock in trade to their net realisable value
-45and 12

- Assumptions and estimates used in calculating the provision for doubtful trade debts - 4.9 and 13

- Assumptions and estimates used in calculating the provision for doubtful loans, advances and other
receivables-4.1, 14 and 17

- Assumptions and estimates used in the recognition of current and deferred taxation - 4.13, 10 and
40

- Assumptions and estimates used in accounting for staff retirement benefits 4.14 - 26.6
- Assumptions and estimates used in disclosure and assessment of provision for contingencies - 32

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the yearended
September 30, 2024

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended September 30

49)
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, 2024.These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations
or did not have significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS Practice January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar
WO income taxes January 01, 2023

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accounting policy
themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to
understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in Note 4 Material
accounting policies (2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the amendments
and concluded that all its accounting policies are material for disclosure.

3.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and
interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
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Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Non-current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024

Amendments to |AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' -
Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB effective
from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effective from
January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effective from
January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which
will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets - owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except for land, which is
stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged, on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset, on reducing balance method,

which reflects the patterns in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the Company, at the
rates specified in the relevant note. Assets residual value and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted
appropriately at each financial year end. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which
the assets are put to use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed
off. No depreciation is provided on leasehold land since the leases are renewable at the option of the lessee
at nominal cost and their realizable values are expected to be higher than respective carrying values.

Depreciation method useful lives and residual values of each party of property plant and equipment that
is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to statement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.
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4.1.2

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Assets are derecognized when disposed or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Gains or losses on disposals, if any, are included in statement of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditures on fixed assets including advances in the course of
construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant fixed assets category as and when assets are
available for use. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost.

Investment property

Investment Property is the property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business, use in production or supply of goods or services as
for administrative purpose.

Former office premises which is held to earn rental income is classified under investment property. It is
carried at its respective cost, under the cost model, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged, on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset,
on reducing balance method, at the rate specified in relevant note.

Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at their fair value less their point of sale costs. Gain / (loss) on such
measurement is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Gain / (loss) on disposal of biological asset is
recognized in statement of profit or loss in the year of disposal.

Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value except for items
in transit, which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other directly attributable charges incurred
thereon up to statement of financial position date. Value of items is reviewed at each statement of financial
position date to record any provision for slow moving items and obsolescence.

Stock-in-trade
Raw material is stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value.

Cost in relation to work in process and finished goods represents cost of raw material and an appropriate
portion of manufacturing overheads. Cost in respect of work in process is adjusted to an appropriate stage
of completion of process whereas value of bagasse is taken equivalent to net realizable value.

Cost in relation to stock of molasses held in ethanol division is valued at weighted average cost of purchased
from third party.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any objective evidence that an asset or group of assets may be impaired. If
any such evidence exists, the asset's or group of assets' recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell. Impairment losses are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCl, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level. The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:
- Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCl with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Investment in TDRs and T-Bills are being measured at amortized cost as the Company is meeting both the
conditions laid below:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and,

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IFRS 9
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
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4.7.3

4.7.4

4.8

established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCl are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company elected to classify irrevocably investment in listed equity investments under this category.
Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past
due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default
events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life
of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Currently these impairment of financial assets are suspended via SRO No. 985 of 2019 as issued by SECP.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL).
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have
expired or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.
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Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and only the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company
intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade debts

Trade debts originated by the Company are recognized and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance
for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts is based on the management's assessment of customer's
outstanding balances and creditworthiness. Trade debts are written-off when identified and considered
irrecoverable.

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayment and other receivables are carried at original amount less provision
made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Balance considered
irrecoverable are written off.

Deposits and prepayments

Trade deposits and prepayments are recorded at cost which is the fair value of consideration to be received /
adjusted in future.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and with banks.
Taxation and levy

Current

Provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001.

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into
account applicable tax credit, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover or Alternate
Corporate Tax (ACT), whichever is higher.

Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method for all temporary
differences at the statement of financial position date between tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realization or the settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, using the
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused
tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit for the foreseeable future will be available
against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Levy

The tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable profit or any amount paid
/ payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income is classified as levy in the statement of profit

égzw@;agg'S%Zayég7é;%%%z¢i
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4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

or loss as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/ IAS 37.
Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan - gratuity scheme

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who
have completed the qualifying period under the scheme. Contributions are made to the fund in accordance
with the actuarial recommendations. The most recent valuation in this regard was carried out as at September
30, 2019, using the Projected Unit Credit Method for valuation of the scheme. Actuarial gains and losses for
the defined benefit plan are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in other comprehensive income.
Such actuarial gains and losses are recognized in equity as capital reserves as these will not be reclassified to
statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods. Current and past service costs, gain or loss on settlement
and net interest income or expense are accounted for in statement of profit or loss.

This scheme is governed by Trust Deed and Rules. All matters pertaining to this scheme including contributions
to the scheme and payments to outgoing members are dealt with in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules.

Employees compensated absences

The Company accounts for liability in respect of unavailed compensated absences for all its permanent
employees, in the period of absence. Provision for liabilities towards compensated absences is made on the
basis of last drawn basic salary. Amount equal to compensation of unavailed leaves upto a maximum of sixty
days of employees at every year end is transferred to this account and paid at the retirement of employees.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received.

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates ruling on the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are recorded
using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency
translations are included in statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement
of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Inter-segment pricing

Transfer between business segments are recorded at net realizable value for bagasse and storage tank terminal.
However, for molasses it is recorded at weighted average purchase price.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and is reduced for the allowances such as taxes, duties, commissions, sales returns and trade
discounts. The following recognition criteria must be met before revenue is recognized:
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- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the performance obligations
arising from the contract with a customer is satisfied and the amount of revenue that it expects to
be entitled to can be determined. This usually occurs when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, which is when goods are dispatched or delivered to the customer. Revenue is measured
based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. Revenue is disclosed net of returns, rebates, discounts and other allowances.

- Return on bank deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding
and the rate applicable while income from held to maturity investment is recorded using effective
yield method.

- Markup on growers loan is accounted for in line with the recovery of the respective loan due to
exigencies involved in such matters. Recognition of markup on loans considered doubtful is deferred.

- All gains / (losses) of securities classified as 'fair value through other comprehensive income' are
included in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise and transferred to equity
at the time of disposal.

- Miscellaneous income is recognized on occurrence of transactions.

- Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend
is established.

- Rental income from investment property and rental income of storage tank terminal are recorded
on accrual basis. However during the year no such transaction relating to rental income on investment
property occurred.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriations to reserves are recognized in the statement of changes in equity in the period
in which these are approved.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. Management
monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets, consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
intangibles, stores and spares, stock in trade and trade debts and other receivables. Segment liabilities
comprise of operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and other corporate liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost included during the year to acquire property, plant and
equipment.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary share holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary share holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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4.23 Change in accounting policy

During the year the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) has issued the guidance for
accounting of minimum and final taxes through circular No. 7/2024 dated May 15, 2024 and defined
following two approaches:

Approach 1: Designate the amount calculated as tax on gross amount of revenue or other basis as a levy
within the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 and recognize it as an operating expense. Any excess over the amount
designated as a levy is then recognized as current income tax expense falling under the scope of IAS 12.

Approach 2: Designate the amount of tax calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as an
income tax within the scope of IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ and recognize it as current income tax expense. Any
excess over the amount designated as income tax, is then recognized as a levy falling under the scope of
IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Company has revised its accounting policy. The corresponding
figures have been reclassified and rearranged where necessary to facilitate comparison, however there

has been no significant reclassification except for the following:

The effect of restatement are as follows:

- As previously
Description P © Asrestated  Restatement
reported

As at Seprenber 30, 2023
Effect on statement of profit or loss

Minimmmtax- differential

Final fax - 120079 120,079
Incoms tax 319.663 199584 (120,079)
Proft for the year 3684617 3684617

The changes do no have any impact to the statement of financial position and statement, statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cashflows. Therefore,
only statement of profit or loss has been restated.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 5.1 1,343,005 1,430,312
Capital work in progress (CWIP) 52 63,340 -

1,406,345 1,430,312
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OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
September 30, 2024
Cost Accumulated depreciation Written down
As at Additions/  Transferred As at As at Charge for As at value as at Rate of
October (Disposal) from CWIP September October theperiod/ September | September |depreciation
01,2023 30,2024 01,2024 (ondisposal) 30,2024 30,2024 %
------------------------------------ Rupeesin'000--------------------------
Owned
Free-hold land 89,429 - - 89,429 - - - 89,429 -
Lease-hold land 22,694 - - 22,694 - - - 22,694 -
Main factory building
- on free-hold land 384,392 - - 384,392 326,173 5,822 331,995 52,397 10
- - - - - - - - 10
Non-factory building
- on free-hold land 195,976 - - 195,976 163,714 3,226 166,940 29,036 10
- on lease-hold land 24,799 - - 24,799 17,017 778 17,795 7,004 10
Plant and machinery 2,995,640 - - 2,995,640 1,837,298 75,430 1,912,728 1,082,912 5to 10
Furniture and fittings 10,986 - - 10,986 8,883 210 9,093 1,893 10
Vehicles 128,670 8,669 - 134,998 80,026 10,607 88,392 46,606 20
- (2,341) - - - (2,241) - -
Office equipment 39,467 1,168 - 40,635 30,310 982 31,292 9,343 10
Computers 11,027 632 - 11,659 9,400 611 10,011 1,648 30
Tools and tackles 4,268 - - 4,268 4,215 10 4,225 43 20
3,907,348 10,469 - 3,915,476 2,477,036 97,676 2,572,471 1,343,005
- (2,341) - - - (2,241) - -
As at September 30, 2023
Cost Accumulated depreciation Written down
As at Additions / Transferred As at As at Charge for As at value as at Rate of
October (Disposal) from CWIP September | October the year/ September September | depreciation
01,2022 30,2023 01,2023  (on disposal) 30,2023 30,2023 %
———————————————————————————————————— Rupeesin'000 -----------------oooeoo oo
Owned
Free-hold land 89,429 - - 89,429 - - - 89,429 -
Lease-hold land 22,694 - - 22,694 - - - 22,694 -
Main factory building
-on free-hold land 384,392 - - 384,392 319,704 6,469 326,173 58,219 10
- - - - - - - - 10
Non-factory building
-on free-hold land 195,976 - - 195,976 160,129 3,585 163,714 32,262 10
-on lease-hold land 24,799 - - 24,799 16,152 865 17,017 7,782 10
Plant and machinery 2,939,868 - 55,772 2,995,640 1,761,530 75,768 1,837,298 1,158,342 5to 10
Furniture and fittings 10,654 332 - 10,986 8,651 232 8,883 2,103 10
Vehicles 107,543 21,646 - 128,670 71,660 8,685 80,026 48,644 20
- (519) - - - (319)
Office equipment 39,352 115 - 39,467 29,304 1,006 30,310 9,157 10
Computers 10,053 974 - 11,027 8,848 552 9,400 1,627 30 \
Tools and tackles 4,268 - - 4,268 4,202 13 4,215 53 20
3,829,028 23,067 55,772 3,907,348 2,380,180 97,175 2,477,036 1,430,312
- (519) - - - (319) - - @

..

B,
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5.1.1 Reconciliation of written down value:

WRITTEN DOWN VALUE
As at Transferred Net book Depreciation As at
October 01, Additions from CWIP value of charge forthe September 30,
2023 deletions year 2024

Owned

Free-hold land 89,429 - - - - 89,429
Lease-hold land 22,694 - - - - 22,694
Main factory building

on free-hold land 58,219 - - - 5822 52,397
Non-factory building

on free-hold land 32,262 - - - 3,226 29,036
on lease-hold land 7,782 - - - 778 7,004
Plant and machinery 1,158,342 - - - 75,430 1,082,912
Furniture and fittings 2,103 - - - 210 1,893
Vehicles 48,644 8,669 - (100) 10,607 46,606
Office equipment 9,157 1,168 - - 982 9,343
Computers 1,627 632 - - 611 1,648
Tools and tackles 53 - - - 10 43
September 30, 2024 1,430,312 10,469 - (100) 97,676 1,343,005
September 30, 2023 1,448,848 23,067 55,772 (200) 97,175 1,430,312

5.1.2 The depreciation charged for the year has been allocated as follows:

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Cost of sales 34 85,611 87,097
Administrative expenses 36 12,065 10,078
97,676 97,175

5.1.3 Particulars of immovable property in the name of the Company are as follows:

Particulars Location Usage of immovable Total Area
property

Freehold land and Mirwah Gorchani,

buildings thereon Mirpurkhas Manufacturing facility 437.58 Acres
Freehold land and Dhabeji Thatta Manufacturing facility 30 Acres

buildings thereon
Leasehold land and Oil Industrial Area,

buildings thereon Kemari, Karachi Storage facility 5700 Square meters
Bungalow Clifton, Karachi Investment property 218.75 Square yards

5.1.4 The aggregate net book value of disposed assets doesn't exceeds the limit of Rs. 5 million as per the requirement
of Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 therefore, no particulars are provided.
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Capital work in progress - (CWIP)

September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
As at Transfer to As at As at Transfer to As at
Description October 01, Additions operating fixed  September October 01, Additions operating September 30,
2023 assets 30,2024 2022 fixed assets 2023

e s s o e e oo - - - - - - -(Rupees in thousand) - - - - - - - - m - m e

Plant and machinery
Plant and machinery

Terminal storage tanks - 53,340 - 53,340 13,502 42,270 (55,772)
Advance to supplier - 10,000 10,000 - - -
Total - 63,340 - 63,340 13,502 42,270 (55,772)
INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Cost Acc lated Depreciation Written down
Description Opening Additions Closing Opening  Charges for Closing value as on Rate of
the year September Depreciation
30 %
---------------------------- (Rupeesin thousand) - - ----------cncmmnnnnn
September 30, 2024 1,600 - 1,600 1,436 16 1,452 148 10%
September 30, 2023 1,600 - 1,600 1418 18 1,436 164 10%

The estimated market value, as assessed by Tristar International Consultant (Private) Limited on May 4, 2023, is Rs.
55 million.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,350 7,434
Additions - 15,350
Re-assessment of lease 2,021 366
Depreciation charged durig the period 7.1 (8,685) (7,800)
Balance at the end of the period 8,686 15,350
Rate of depreciation % (straight line basis) 50% 50%

Depreciation is charged on the right-of-use assets for the year has been allocated as follows:

Administrative expenses 8,685 7,800

Rental contracts are established for a fixed term, with the possibility of renewal upon mutual agreement between
the Company and the lessor. When feasible, the Company aims to include extension options to allow for operational
flexibility. Management applies considerable judgment in assessing the likelihood of exercising these extension
and termination options.

Bringeng Back Sneetness
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
8 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
At fair value through other comprehensive income 8.1 200,233 123,638
8.1 2024 2023
Number of shares
par value Rs. 10 each
5,400 4,500 Hum Network Limited 53 30
2,488,061 2,488,061 Power Cement Limited
- Ordinary Shares 12,490 10,077
572,254 572,254 Power Cement Limited
- Preference Shares 8.1.1 5,951 2,518
4,500 4,500 Aisha Steel Mills Limited -
Preference Shares 8.1.2 41 41
7,209 7,209 Aisha Steel Mills Limited
-Ordinary Shares 45 41
1,125,000 1,125,000 Fauji Cement Limited 28,440 12,724
591,815 591,815 Mehran Sugar Mills Limited 24,904 25,507
872,850 872,850 IGI Holdings Limited 128,309 72,700
200,233 123,638

8.1.1 These are non - redeemable but convertible into ordinary Shares upon the expiry of 12 months from the
issue date. Conversion Ratio is to be determined by dividing the aggregate face value of preference shares
plus the outstanding balance of any accumulated / accrued preferred dividend (if not paid till conversion)
by Rs. 7.5/-. The rate of dividend on these shares is 1.5% above six months KIBOR.

As at September 30, 2024, the dividend accrued on these preference shares amounted to Rs. 2.989 (2023:
Rs. 1.836) million which has not been recorded in these financial statements as the Investee Company has
accumulated losses and also has not recorded the same in its books of accounts.

8.1.2 These are non- reedeemable preferencce shares but convertible into Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 per ordinary
share in the ratio of 1:1, plus unpaid preferential dividends, if any. The rate of dividend on these shares s
3% above six months KIBOR.

As at September 30, 2024, the dividend accrued on these preference shares amounted to Rs. 0.020 (2023:
Rs. 0.009) million which has not been recorded in these financial statements as the Investee Company has
accumulated losses and also has not recorded the same in its books of accounts.

The market value of each quoted security at the reporting date is as follows:

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in thousand)
HUM Network Limited (HUMNL) 9.86 5.50
Power Cement Limited (POWER) 5.02 4.05
Power Cement Limited (POWERPS) 10.40 4.40
Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASLPS) 9.20 9.17
Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASL) 6.30 5.75
Fauji Cement Limited (FFC) 25.28 11.31
Mehran Sugar Mills Limited (MRNS) 42.08 43.10

IGI Holding Limited (IGIHL) 147.00 83.29
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Note

LONG-TERM LOANS

Considered good and secured
Due from executives 9.1
Due from other employees

9.2&93
Less: current portion of long term loans 14

Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives

Balance at beginning of the year
Less: recoveries during the year
Effect of amortization on loan
Balance at end of the year

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

- 1,136

371 543
371 1,679
(284) (1,443)
87 236
1,136 2,177
(1,200) (1,200)
64 159

- 1,136

The above loans are interest free and are given to executives and other employees of the Company for
personal use in accordance with their terms of employment and policy of the Company. These loans are
to be repaid over a period of one to two years in equal monthly installments. These are secured against
the retirement benefits and life insurance (incase of death) of the employees and are within the limits of

such securities.

Maximum aggregate amount of loans outstanding at any month end was Rs. 1.61 (2023: Rs. 3.289) million.

Note
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

At fair value
Carrying value at beginning of the year
Increase due to cultivation

Reduction due to harvesting
Carrying value at end of the year

Physical quantities of the above biological assets are as follows:

At beginning of the year
Increase due to cultivation
Reduction due to harvesting
At end of the year

Note
STORES AND SPARES

Stores and spares
Provision for slow moving items and obsolescence

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

2,136 2,001
5,162 2,136
7,298 4,137
(2,136) (2,001)
5,162 2,136
In maunds In maunds
(per 40 kg) (per 40 kg)
5,275 8,700
12,780 5,275
(5,275) (8,700)
12,780 5,275
2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)

310,152 333,272
(29,938) (29,938)
280,214 303,334

&)
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12.1

13

13.1

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Molasses

Ferro silicone
Raw materials
Work-in-process

Finished goods
Sugar
Ethanol

Stock of bagasse in hand

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
1,174,264 697,186
4,001 9,034
1,178,265 706,220
8,705 6,565
2,845,696 1,600,721
941,814 1,518,132
12.1 3,787,510 3,118,853
44,644 5,317
5,019,124 3,836,955

Finished goods include stock items valued at net realizable value (NRV) at Rs. 2,925.646 (2023: Rs. Nil)

million.

Summary of related Cost and NRV is as under:

Sugar
Ethanol

TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

Export - secured
Local - unsecured

Considered doubtful
Local - unsecured

Credit loss allowance on trade debts

Region Mode
2024

Asia Confirmed LC
2023

Africa Partial Advance and payment on documents

Cost

NRV

(Rupees in thousand)

3,056,229 2,838,999

96,940 86,647

3,153,169 2,925,646

13.1 46,745 149,348
594,239 103,456

640,984 252,804

45,062 16,012

686,046 268,816

13.2 (45,062) (16,012)
640,984 252,804

46,745

149,348
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13.2 Movements in loss allowance on trade debts during the year is as follows

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,012 16,012
Expected credit loss 29,050 -
Balance at end of the year 45,062 16,012
14 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans
To growers
- Interest based:
Considered good 14.1 1,116 14,012
- Non - Interest Based:
Considered good 547 1,004
Considered doubtful 7,284 5,310
7,831 6,314
Provision for loans considered doubtful (7,284) (5310)
547 1,004
Current portion of loans to employees and executives 9 284 1,443
1,947 16,459
Advances
Considered good
To employees against expenses 42 259
To suppliers and contractors 14.2 3,128,156 3,672,728
Against letter of credit for stores and spares parts 17,260 828
3,145,458 3,673,815
Considered doubtful
To suppliers and contractors 73,669 73,669
3,219,127 3,747,484
Provision for doubtful advances (73,669) (73,669)
3,145,458 3,673,815
3,147,405 3,690,273

14.1  The rate of markup on such loans is T month KIBOR plus 1% spread (2023: 1 month KIBOR plus 1% spread)
per annum subject to final settlement with the respective grower. In order to ensure supply of sugarcane
from certain growers, Company has provided fertilizers, seeds and tricograma cards which has been
provided as loan and the Company will recover the same out of the cane supply from the said grower in
the ensuing season.

14.2  This includes payments made to suppliers for the purchase of molasses and sugar, which will be offset at
the time of future purchases of molasses and sugar from the same suppliers.

15 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Deposits 66,294 2,214
Prepayments 15.1 10,381 12,401
76,675 14,615
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15.1 Prepayments

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Rent 1,071 1,005
Establishment charges 6,656 6,037
Insurance 1,138 4,153
Listing fees 1,516 -
Software license fees - 1,206
10,381 12,401
16 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
At amortized cost
Term Deposit Receipts 16.1 54,600 600
At fair value through profit or loss
Mutual funds 16.2 1,087,889 2,459,221
Government Securities - Treasury Bills - 185,241
1,142,489 2,645,062

16.1 These carry profit ranging from 15.7% to 20.25% (2023: 10.93% to 15.70%) per annum.

Number of Fair value
units (Rupeesin
thousand)
As at September 30, 2024
16.2 The details of Investees is as follows:
MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 5,955,170 638,931
NIT Money Market Fund 36,447,701 372,864
NBP Money Market Fund 7,229,600 76,094
49,632,471 1,087,889
17 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Sales tax and excise duty 17.1 3,894 3,894
(funded staff retirement gratuity)
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity 17.2 10,932 36,983
Nazir of High Court of Sindh 17.3 20,662 -
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 17.4 860 -
Others 30 30
36,378 40,907
Considered doubtful
Freight subsidy on sugar export 274,405 274,405
310,783 315,312
Provision for frieght subsidy on sugar export (274,405) (274,405)
36,378 40,907

17.1 The Company received a Show Cause Notice from the Assistant Commissioner (Unit-08), Sindh Revenue
Board, Karachi, citing a shortfall in Sindh Service Tax payments totaling Rs. 15.575 million for the financial
years 2013-14,2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17. Subsequently, an Order-in-Original was issued, demanding
payment of Rs. 31.929 Million (the principal amount plus a penalty of Rs. 16.354 million). The Sindh Revenue
Board directly recovered Rs. 3.336 million by debiting the Company's Bank account. In response, the
Company appealed to the Commissioner (Appeals) in Karachi, which granted a Stay Order. As a precautionary
measure, the Company paid Rs. 0.558 million (25% of the principal amount) to prevent further recovery
actions by the Sindh Revenue Board under Section 66(1)(f). The case remains pending before the
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Commissioner (Appeals) in Karachi, and ongoing hearings are underway.

Defined benefit plan - related party

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

As stated in note 4.14, the Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e. an approved funded gratuity
scheme for all its permanent employees subject to attainment of retirement age and minimum service
of prescribed period. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial
valuation was carried out as at September 30, 2024 using projected unit credit method. The disclosures
made in notes to 17.2.12 are based on the information included in that actuary's report.

The asset recognized in the balance sheet is as follows:

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Present value of defined benefit obligation 17.2.2 (110,434) (92,336)
Fair value of plan assets 17.2.3 167,741 170,270
Payables (33,217) (32,695)
Receivable from employees gratuity fund 17.2.7 24,090 45,239
Other liability - Payable to gratuity fund (13,158) (8,256)
Net receivable at the balance sheet date 10,932 36,983
Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the

beginning of the year 92,336 95,994
Current service cost 22,430 22,033
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 13,719 10,414
Benefits due but not paid (payables) (596) (254)
Benefits paid (20,261) (34,548)
Remeasurements due to - actuarial (loss)/gain from

change in assumption 370 (260)
Remeasurements due to - experience adjustments 2,436 (1,043)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the

end of the year 110,434 92,336
Changes in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 170,270 125,736
Contributions during the year - 10,000
Interest income on plan assets 26,823 15,034
Benefit paid during the year - defined benefit obligation (20,261) (34,548)
Benefit paid during the year from payables (75) (4,000)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (9,016) 58,048
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 167,741 170,270
Plan assets comprises of

2024 2023
Rupeesin % Rupeesin %
'000 '000
Equity 136,877 81.60 130,421 76.60
Cash and/or deposits 540 0.32 14,836 8.71
Other 30,324 18.08 25,013 14.69
167,741 100.00 170,270 100.00
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17.2.5

17.2.6

17.2.7

17.2.8

17.2.9

The following amounts have been charged to profit and loss account during the year

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Current service cost 22,430 22,033
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 13,719 10,414
Interest income on plan assets (26,823) (15,034)
9,326 17,413
Total Remeasurements Chargeable in Other Comprehensive Income
(Loss) / gain on remeasurements of defined benefit obligation
Due to experience adjustments (370) 260
Actuarial (loss)/gain from changes in financial assumptions (2,436) 1,043
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (9,016) 58,048
(11,822) 59,351
Movement in net asset recognized in the balance sheet
Asset / (liability) at the beginning of the year 45,239 (6,699)
Charge for the year 17.2.5 (9,326) (17,413)
Remeasurements chargeable in other
comprehensive income 17.2.6 (11,822) 59,351
Contributions - 10,000
Asset at the end of the year 24,091 45,239

Other liability - Payable to gratuity fund - related party

The Company operates a policy that its employees can obtain loans from Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited
Employees Gratuity Fund Trust - a related party (the fund). The Company recovers these loans from
employees through monthly deduction from their salaries and offsets the same against the net receivable
from the Fund.

Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation for gratuity fund was carried out as at September 30, 2024 using the Projected
Unit Credit Method (PUCM). The following significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation:

2024 2023
Discount rate 12.00% 16.75%
Expected rate of increase in salary 11.00% 15.75%
Average retirement age of the employee 60 years 60 years
Withdrawal rates Age based Age based

17.2.10 Year end sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and
expected rate of salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable
possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant:
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)

Impact on defined benefit

obligation
Changesin Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption  assumption
% (Rupees in thousand)
Discount rate 1 104,170 117,473
Salary increase 1 117,328 104,197

17.2.11 Expected charge for the year 2024-25 will be Rs. 18.828 million.

17.2.12 Risks associated with the fund

17.3

17.4

Investment Risk: The risk of the investment underperforming and being not sufficient to meet the liabilities.

Final Salary Risk: The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the
company assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation
and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Withdrawal Risk: The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability.
The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

Mortality Risk: The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than that of assumed mortality.
This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

The High Court of Sindh, through its Order dated September 24, 2024 directed the Nazir to return the
amounts deposited by the respective sugar mills in proportion to the allocation detailed in the joint
statement. Following the conclusion of the financial year, the Company has received Rs. 20.662 million
from the Nazir of the High Court of Sindh, which has been duly accounted for in these financial statements.

Initially, an intra-court appeal, HCA No. 66 of 2023, was filed challenging the Order dated March 7, 2023,
passed by a Single Judge of the High Court of Sindh in Suit No. 145 of 2023. This Order had declared the
allocation of a 2,500 MT sugar export quota for each sugar mill in Sindh, as facilitated by the Cane
Commissioner, to be illegal. Subsequently, on March 9, 2023, the High Court amended the impugned
Order, providing that the alleged quota of 21,807 MT held by JDW Sugar Mills Limited, Deharki Sugar Mills
(Private) Limited, and JK Sugar Mills Limited would be preserved under the supervision of the Cane
Commissioner and the Pakistan Sugar Mills Association (PSMA). Additionally, all sugar mills were authorized
to export 1,500 MT of sugar each.

In its Order dated May 30, 2023, the Court further held that the 32 sugar mills in Sindh were entitled to
retain proceeds from the sale of 570 MT of sugar each. Concurrently, the Court directed that proceeds from
the sale of 493 MT of sugar per mill, calculated at a rate of Rs. 96.1 per kg, be deposited with the Nazir of
the High Court. In compliance with this Order, the Company has deposited Rs. 47.387 million with the
Nazir of the High Court of Sindh.

Workers' profit participation fund

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Balance at beginning of the year (20,970) 125
Interest for the year (375) (121)
(21,345) 4
Charge for the year 37 (94,140) (210,970)
(115,485) (210,966)
Net payment during the year 116,345 189,996
860 (20,970)
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INTEREST ACCRUED
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Growers loan 14.1 645 1,854
Term deposit receipts / savings account 16.1 970 76
1,615 1,930
INCOME TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM THE GOVERNMENT
Income tax 19.1 74,877 (9,101)
Balance at the beginning of the year (9,101) 33,532
Advance tax paid / deducted during the year 376,055 192,814
Taxation and levy for the year (265,153) (221,541)
Prior year tax (26,924) (13,906)
74,877 (9,101)
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 1,069 1,115
Cash at banks
Current accounts 37,211 36,405
Savings accounts 20.1 47,782 30,409
84,993 66,814
86,062 67,929

These carry profit ranging from 9.01% to 20.5% (2022: 6.5% to 20.5%) per annum.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) (Rupees in thousand)

Ordinary shares of par value
17,362,300 17,362,300 of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 173,623 173,623

Number of shares held by associated undertakings as on the statement of financial position date were
10,105,312 (2023:10,105,312).

The ordinary share holders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements
in the form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote per
share without restriction.

ACCUMULATED RESERVES
2024 2023
Capital reserves Note (Rupees in thousand)
Unrealized loss on investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (70,185) (143,355)
Revenue reserves
General reserve 1,458,000 1,458,000
Unappropriated profit 6,439,794 5,434,556
7,897,794 6,892,556

7,827,609 6,749,201
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LEASE LIABILITY

Lease liabilities related to right-of-use asset - rented properties

Note

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Balance at the beginning of the period 15,350 7,751
Re-assessment of lease 2,021 15,716
Interest on lease liability 38 3,093 428
Less: Lease rental paid (10,371) (8,545)
Closing balance at the end of the period 10,093 15,350
Current portion shown under current liabilities 23.2 (10,093) (6,655)
Long-term lease liability - 8,695
Maturity Analysis of Minimum Lease Payments
2024 2023
Present value Present value
Minimum Future of minimum Minimum Future of minimum
lease Finance lease lease Finance lease

-------------- (Rupees in thousand)

Not later than one year 11,336 (1,243) 10,093
Later than one year but not
later than five years -

(Rupees in thousand)------------

9,299 (2,644) 6,655

- - 9,765 (1,070 8,695

11,336 (1,243) 10,093 19,064 (3,714) 15,350
2024 2023

MARKET COMMITTEE FEE PAYABLE

Balance at the beginning of the period
Market Committee fee

Unwinding of Market Committee fee

Less: payment made

Closing balance at the end of the period
Current portion of market committee fee
Long-term portion of market committee fee

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets arising in respect of:
Deductible temporary differences
Minimum tax

Liabilities

Provisions

Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation
Investment

(Rupees in thousand)

19,722 21,754
4,891 4,008
1,942 1,968

(4,891) (8,008)

21,664 19,722

(1,438) -

20,226 19,722

(81,119) (42,424)
(112,036) (112,036)
(46,222) (28,741)
(239,377) (183,201)
279,923 290,565

3,426 -

283,349 290,565
43,972 107,364
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 26.1,26.2 &26.3 1,065,554 1,090,350
Accrued liabilities 153,487 135,018
Contract liabilities 26.4 52,945 1,174,195
Short term deposits 26.5 22,383 21,383
Sales tax payable 56,851 19,098
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 17.4 - 20,970
Workers' Welfare Fund 16,097 11,127
Retention money 2,129 2,113
Special Excise Duty payable 9,696 9,696
Withholding tax payable 17,359 7,189
Others 7,819 7,298
1,404,320 2,498,437

The management has recorded an amount of Rs. 141.139 million pertaining to sugarcane purchases for
the crushing season 2014-15. This recording was made prudently, considering notifications issued by the
Cane Commissioner Sindh on November 07, 2014, and December 09, 2014. This was done after adjusting
the amount paid by the Government of Sindh to the growers through Sugar Mills, in alignment with the
interim decision of the High Court of Sindh.

However, these notifications have faced a challenge by the Pakistan Sugar Mills Association and other
Sugar Mills in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. Initially, the Supreme Court dismissed the case
against the Company through its Order dated September 13, 2023. Nevertheless, the Company, alongside
other sugar mills, has filed a Review Petition in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is currently pending.

As per the regulations outlined in the Sugar Factories Control Act, 1950, the Company is mandated to
remunerate a quality premium to sugarcane growers. This premium, charged at a rate of 50 paisa per
kilogram of sugarcane crushed, is applicable for every 0.1 percent of sucrose recovery exceeding the
benchmark of 8.7 percent.

The Company, in conjunction with other sugar mills, contested the imposition of this quality premium
before the High Court of Sindh. However, the Court ruled unfavorably against the sugar mills. Subsequently,
the Company appealed this decision to the Supreme Court of Pakistan and secured a Stay Order against
the judgment of the Court.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan concluded the appeal in 2019 and issued an Order. Over the period from
1998-99 till current date, the Company has made payments for the quality premium. These payments were
calculated by factoring in the additional or excess amounts paid beyond the minimum support price
stipulated by the Provincial Government.

In 2019, the Sindh Growers Alliance filed C.P - 3458 of 2019 against the Company and other sugar mills
in the High Court of Sindh, seeking the enforcement of the Apex Court Order. The Honorable Court resolved
the case through a consensually agreed Order, stipulating that the Cane Commissioner of Sindh would
individually assess each notification and determine the sucrose recovery rate in accordance with each
notification.As per this Order, growers were instructed to submit their claims to the mills, and the mills
were required to verify these claims within a two-month period, following which payments would be
processed. Given that the Company had already made excess or additional payments to the growers, it
holds the belief that no further liabilities will arise. As a prudent measure, the Company has refrained from
reversing this liability in its financial records.

The fixation of the minimum price for sugarcane during the 2017-18 crushing season, set by the Government
of Sindh, was contested in the High Court of Sindh. In their decision on January 30, 2018, in cases C.P No.
8666 of 2017 and 7951 of 2017, the High Court, after obtaining consent from all stakeholders/petitioners,
instructed the sugar mills to compensate growers at Rs.160/- per 40kg for the 2017-18 crushing season,
pending the final decision of the Supreme Court in Civil Appeal 48/2015. The Supreme Court, due to the
non-appearance of the Respondents Counsel, dismissed the case as infructuous through an Order dated
September 13, 2023.
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The Company, among other sugar mills, submitted a Review Petition in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
The matter remains pending before the court. Therefore, acknowledging the liability's contingent nature,
which hinges on any directives from the Supreme Court of Pakistan revising the previously paid price to
the cane growers, the Company recorded a provision of Rs. 363.586 million.

Contract liabilities

During the year, the performance obligations underlying the opening contract liability of Rs. 1,174.195
million were satisfied infull. Accordingly, the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year.

In addition, information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the
closing contract liability of Rs. 68.021 million is not presented since the expected duration of all the
contracts entered into with the customers is less than one year.

This represents security deposit received from a customer on a written agreement and utilizable for
Company's business which is in compliance with Section 217 of Company's Act, 2017.

ACCRUED MARKUP
2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Markup on short term borrowings 15,398 49,508
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured
Cash / running finances 129,791 385,105
Export refinance scheme (ERF) 2,395,000 2,265,000
Export finance scheme (EFS) 47,958 97,833
28.1 2,572,749 2,747,938

The available aggregate finance facilities (short term funded) amounted to Rs. 7.250 (2023: Rs. 5.650) billion
which have been arranged from various commercial banks out of which Rs. 6.350 (2023: 5.350) billion are
with export refinance and FE 25. Out of total export refinance limit, Rs. 6.650 (2023: 4.765) billion are
interchangeable. The short term financing facilities are secured against hypothecation of current assets,
pledge of stock and hypothecation over present and future property, plant and equipment of the Company.

Cash / running finance carry markup ranging from 1 to 6 months KIBOR plus 0.3% to 1.25% (2023: 1 to 6
months KIBOR plus 0.4% to 1%) per annum payable quarterly in arrears or upon maturity and Export
refinance carry markup ranging from SBP rate plus 0.5% to 1% (2023: SBP rate plus 0.5% to 1%) per anum.
At the year end, facilities amounting to Rs. 4.677 (2023: Rs. 2.902) billion remained unutilized. These
facilities are expiring on various dates latest by March 2025 and are renewable.

The available facilities for opening letters of credit on the reporting date aggregate to Rs. 300 (2023: Rs.
300) million of which facilities unutilized on reporting date amounting to Rs. 300 (2023: Rs. 300) million.

The available facilities in respect of letters of guarantee on the reporting date aggregate to Rs. 55.00 (2023:
Rs. 55.00) million of which facilities unutilized on reporting date amounting to Rs. 0.400 (2023: Rs. 0.400)
million.

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

Lease liability 10,093 6,655
Market committee fee payable 1,438 -
11,531 6,655
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b)

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Unclaimed dividend 30.1 63,671 62,516

As per the Companies Act, 2017, the Company has sent final notices to its shareholders concerning dividends
that have been unclaimed for over three years. Should these dividends remain unclaimed beyond the specified
notice period, they will be transferred to the Government's account in accordance with the regulations.

Moreover, the Company has formally requested the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to provide
the designated bank account details. This request aims to facilitate the transfer of unclaimed dividend amounts
that have exceeded the three-year limit.

PROVISION FOR LEVY AND TAXATION

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Net Provision for taxation for the year - 9,101
Liability under Section 12(9A) 31.1 12,846 12,846
12,846 21,947

The Company initiated an appeal before the Commission of Income Tax (CIT) against the tax amount imposed
by the Income Tax Officer (ITO) under section 12(9A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, relating to the
assessment year 2002-2003. The CIT set aside the order of the ITO in favor of the Company. Subsequently, the
Department appealed this decision before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, which upheld the decision of
the CIT.

However, the Department filed a reference application before the High Court of Sindh, and this matter is
currently pending. According to the tax advisor, the decision of the reference is anticipated to favor the
Company.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Karachi Water and Sewerage Board (Board) has demanded Rs. 20.876 million for water, sewerage, fire, and
conservancy charges. The Company has contested this demand in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, Karachi,
stating that no such services are being provided by the Board. The Court has halted the enforcement of the
Demand Notice issued by the Board, and the case hearings are currently ongoing. Based on the advice of the
legal advisor, the management is optimistic about a favorable decision for the Company. Consequently, no
provision has been accounted for in these financial statements.

In 2013, Mr. Suleman Lalani, a non-executive and minority Director of the Company, filed Suit No. 281 in the
Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi. This suit was against the Company, its former Chief Executive, and
eight others. Allegations within the suit centered around mismanagement in the Company's operations,
including claims of the former Chief Executive and others siphoning off and diverting Company funds. The
main relief sought in the suit includes the retrieval of Rs. 236.716 million of the Company's funds, as well as
the expenses incurred by the plaintiff in filing the suit. Additionally, the plaintiff seeks the appointment of a
receiver, the execution of a forensic audit of the Company, and the removal of its former Chief Executive. In
response to the mentioned allegations, the Company and its management have refuted all claims made by
the plaintiff. The suit is currently at the stage of Civil Miscellaneous hearing for the applications.

On March 08, 2021, Mr. Suleman Lalani submitted an application under Order 1 Rule 10, in conjunction with
Section 151 of the Civil Procedure Code (C.P.C.) 1908. In this application, he requested the inclusion of the
current Chief Executive Officer in the ongoing Suit. He argued that the CEO was exerting influence on the
Board for personal gains, aiming for unjust enrichment at the Company's expense.
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The legal counsel for the Company has indicated that due to the uncertainty surrounding the litigation's
outcome, making a definitive prediction at this stage is not feasible. Nevertheless, the Company's management
holds the belief that no adverse implications are likely to materialize from the suit.

Additionally, Mr. Lalani filed another Civil Miscellaneous Application (CMA) No. 9973 of 2013, requesting the
restraint of the Company's Board of Directors from specifically endorsing any investments in Javedan Corporation
Limited ("JCL"), a distinct and unrelated public limited Company. The mentioned Civil Miscellaneous Application
was presented before the Honourable High Court of Sindh by both parties.

The Court has restrained the defendant from making any decisions regarding investments in JCL until the suit
reaches its final resolution. Additionally, the Court directed the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
("SECP") to regard the complaint filed in this context as a complaint under Section 263 of the previously enacted
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now encompassed within the Companies Act, 2017). Consequently, the SECP
was tasked with investigating the Company's affairs and submitting a report on the matter.

The Company has contested the aforementioned Court Order before the Division Bench of the Honourable
High Court of Sindh via an appeal numbered HCA-124. This appeal has resulted in the suspension of a segment
of the High Court's Order specifically concerning the directive for the SECP to conduct an investigation into
the Company.

In the same context, the SECP had issued an Order pursuant to Section 231 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
The Company challenged this order through CP. No. D-1990/2013 before the High Court of Sindh. Subsequently,
the Company obtained an Order from the Court preventing any coercive action based on the SECP's directive.
During the hearing of HCA No. 124/2013, the appellant requested that the case CPD-1990/2013 be considered
alongside appeal No. HCA 124/2013. The Interim Order previously granted by the High Court of Sindh was
modified, directing the Company to present all its accounts before the SECP. However, the Court instructed
the SECP not to take any final action against the Company. In adherence to the orders from the Honourable
Court in CP No. D-1990/2013 and HCA No. 124/2013, the Company ensured compliance. The appeal is presently
awaiting a decision from the Division Bench, and according to the legal advisor's perspective, the Company
stands a fair chance of success in this case.

The Federal Government issued a notification, implementing a reduced rate of Federal Excise Duty (FED) at
0.5% on the local supply of sugar. This reduction applies to the quantity of sugar exported by sugar mills, as
allocated by the Economic Coordination Committee in its meeting on January 10, 2013. However, this reduction
is subject to the terms and conditions outlined in S.R.O 77(1)/2013 dated February 07, 2013.The Company
began utilizing the benefit from January 10, 2013, under the belief that the relief was effective from that date.
However, the department contends that the relief was applicable only from the date of SRO. As a result, a
demand of Rs. 85.450 million was established, pertaining to the period before the date of the SRO. In the
financial year 2015-16, the Company contested this matter before the Appellate Tribunal, which ruled in favor
of the Company. Following this, the Commissioner Inland Revenue filed Miscellaneous Applications seeking
rectifications before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. However, these applications were subsequently
rejected by the Tribunal. The Department has once again submitted a reference application before the
Honourable High Court of Sindh, and this matter is currently pending. According to the assessment of the tax
advisor, the decision stemming from this reference is expected to favor the Company.

In the case filed by Mr. Mureed Ali Shah against the Federation of Pakistan and Others in the High Court of
Sindh, Karachi, dated May 14, 2018, C.P. No. 3823 of 2018, he requested the withdrawal, cancellation, or cessation
of cash freight subsidies provided by the Federal Government to sugar mills in Sindh for sugar export. His
contention revolved around his belief that Sindh Sugar Mills had violated Condition No. VI of the Cabinet's
Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) approval, ECC 96/19/2017, dated September 14, 2017.

This condition specified that ""After November 2017, it will also be necessary for the mills to start crushing at
full capacity throughout the crushing season to become eligible for exports"". Additionally, Mr. Mureed Ali
Shah requested that the extra cash payments sanctioned by the Sindh Cabinet during their meeting on
December 04, 2017, should be reimbursed by all sugar mills situated in Sindh. Furthermore, he sought an
injunction restraining the Federal Government from implementing the aforementioned ECC approval until the
disposition of this petition. The case is currently being heard and is pending before the Honourable High Court
of Sindh.

Given that the Company has adhered to Condition No. VI of the ECC approval, legal counsel anticipates a
favorable outcome in this case. Compliance with the specified condition strengthens the Company's position
in the legal proceedings.

7

3
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The Company received a notice under Section 37 of the Sales Tax Act 1990, dated January 18, 2022, from the
Additional Director of the Directorate of Intelligence and Investigation (Inland Revenue) Karachi. This notice
demanded a sales tax payment of Rs. 42.735 million for sales made to a sugar broker during the years 2016-
17,2017-18,2018-19, and 2019-20.

In response, the Company filed a Petition C.P. D-1183 of 2022 before the Honourable High Court of Sindh,
Karachi. The Company secured a Stay Order against the notice, instructing the department not to take any
further steps prejudicial to the Company's interests. The case is currently at the hearing stage. According to
the legal counsel, the expected outcome will favor the Company.

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) initiated tax audits for the tax years 2015, 2016, 2018, and 2019 in the fiscal
year 2021 under Section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Despite providing all records, submitting
evidence, and details as requested, the audit proceedings concluded unfavorably. Detrimental Orders were
passed under Sections 122(1) and 4 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Consequently, frivolous tax demands
totaling Rs. 8.639 billion and penalties amounting to Rs. 7.404 billion under Section 182(2) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, were imposed for these tax years.

In response, the Company filed an Appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue, Karachi, contesting these
assessments. However, the Commissioner upheld all the additions made by the Department (CIR) in the initial
decision. Dissatisfied with this outcome, the Company further appealed to the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue.

The Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue reviewed the case and removed additions amounting to Rs. 24.966
billion from the total additions of Rs. 25.070 billion. Additionally, the Tribunal remanded back the remaining
amount of additions totaling Rs. 104.86 million for further consideration or review. The Department (CIR)
remanded the apportionment of expenses, impacting the NTR Income amounting to Rs. 649.055 million.
Additionally, the Department filed an appeal in the High Court of Sindh against the Order issued by the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, and this appeal is currently awaiting a hearing.

Given that the demanded tax lacks factual basis and proper records, coupled with the tax advisor's view that
these Orders are unlikely to withstand an appeal, the Company hasn't made any provisions in the financial
statements against these demands.

The Competition Commission of Pakistan issued a show cause notice, No. 103/2020 dated November 05, 2020,
stemming from an inquiry initiated under Section 37(1) of the Act. The purpose was to investigate potential
anti-competitive activities within the sugar industry, specifically examining any violations of Section 3 and 4
of the Act by the Pakistan Sugar Mills Association and its member entities. Allegations included actions
contributing to price hikes, cessation of crushing during the 2019-20 crushing season, and holding back on a
sugar tender initiated by the Utility Store Corporation. The Company participated in various hearings and
responded to the notice through its legal counsel.

On August 06, 2021, the Competition Commission of Pakistan issued an Order, where two out of four members,
including the Chairperson, concluded that the Pakistan Sugar Mills Association and its associated entities were
prima facie involved in violating Section 4 of the Competition Act 2010. The Order highlighted that the Enquiry
Committee discovered evidence suggesting collusive or collective decision-making that contributed to sugar
shortages and price hikes. However, the Commission determined that there was an absence of any individual
or collective dominant position in the relevant market. Therefore, the Commission did not find a case of abuse
of dominance under Section 3 of the Act.

The Competition Commission of Pakistan, with the Chairperson and one member in agreement, found the
tender dated March 20, 2010, to be a prima facie violation of Section 4(1) read with Section 4(2)(c) of the Act.
This indicated that the Pakistan Sugar Mills Association and its members potentially made a collective decision
regarding the division and allocation of the quantity to be supplied. Consequently, the Commission imposed
a penalty of Rs. 358.243 million for collective decisions on export quantities from 2012 to 2020 and an additional
penalty of Rs. 50 million for involvement in the Utility Store Corporation tender in 2010.

However, due to two members of the Commission holding a differing opinion, a deadlock emerged regarding
the determination of the issue for which the penalty was imposed. To break the deadlock, the Chairperson
exercised a second or casting vote in favor of imposing the penalty. As a result, the Order dated August 13,
2021, was passed against the Company.
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The Company initiated legal action through Suit No. 2273 of 2021, seeking a permanent injunction and
disputing the legality and legitimacy of the casting vote Order dated 13-08-2021 issued by the Competition
Commission of Pakistan. The Honourable High Court of Sindh suspended the operations of the challenged
Orders dated August 06, 2021 and August 13, 2021. Subsequently, the Competition Commission of Pakistan
issued show cause notice No. 34/2021 dated October 08, 2021, founded on the Order dated August 13,
2021.

In response, the Company filed Suit No. 2381 of 2021 in the High Court of Sindh, contesting the legality
of the Show Cause Notices as they were based on an allegedly illegal Order. The Court, through an Order
dated October 14, 2022, suspended the operations of these notices. Furthermore, in an Order dated June
13,2022, the Single Judge modified the interim Order by granting injunction specifically regarding the
casting vote decision of the chairman/chairperson, contingent on the Company securing 50% of the
respective penalties with the Nazir of the High Court.

The Company lodged an appeal (HCA No. 235 of 2022) with the Division Bench of the Honourable High
Court of Sindh. In this appeal, both contesting parties jointly submitted a statement requesting: (a) Setting
aside the Order dated 13-06-2022 issued by the learned Single Judge in Suit No. 2273. (b) Releasing any
bank guarantee submitted by the Company and returning it to the Plaintiff. (c) Ensuring that the Competition
Commission of Pakistan refrains from initiating recovery proceedings against the Plaintiff in Suit No. 2273
until the final decision on the pending appeals before the Competition Appellate Tribunal. Presently, the
hearing for Appeal No. 37/2022 is pending before the Competition Appellate Tribunal. The Company's
lawyer is optimistic that the ultimate decision will favor the Company.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an Order-in-Original No. (ONO) 13/49/2022-23
dated September 23, 2022, which demanded Rs. 106.932 million plus default surcharges and penalties
concerning discrepancies in sales amounts reported in the annual income tax return and annual sales tax
return for the tax year 2018.

According to the management's perspective, the DCIR failed to acknowledge that the income tax period
for the year 2018 spans from October 01, 2016, to September 30, 2017. However, the tax period for sales
tax considered in the ONO is from July 01, 2017, to June 30, 2018. Consequently, the difference in sales
amounts arises due to these distinct periods.

The Company challenged this ruling at the CIR (Appeals), leading to the reversal of the DCIR's order.
Following this, the Department appealed against the CIR's decision to the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue. According to the assessment made by the tax consultant, the expected final outcome is in favor
of the Company.

Commitments

Bank guarantees of Rs. 54.6 (2023: Rs. 54.6) Million have been issued by the banking companies on behalf
of the Company in favour of customers and suppliers.

Sugar Ethanol Other reportable segements Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
33 SALES - NET

Gross sales

Local 5,493,266 4,088,801 195,480 22,489 - 46,643 5,688,746 4,157,933

Export 17.3 & 33.1 209,592 350,146 11,230,083 10,264,485 - - 11,439,675 10,614,631
Services - Local - - - - 32,400 15,600 32,400 15,600

Trading activities - local

Less:

- - - - 284,160 502,272 284,160 502,272
5,702,858 4,438,947 11,425,563 10,286,974 316,560 564,515 17,444,981 15,290,436

Sales tax and ferderal
excise duty (865,983) (633,687) (27,400) (3,118) _ (43,827) (84,396)  (937,210) (721,201)

4,836,875 3,805,260 11,398,163 10,283,856 _ 272,733 480,119 16,507,771 14,569,235

33.1 ltincludes exchange loss of Rs. 0.72 (2023: Gain of Rs. 1.095) million on export of sugar while exchange gain of Rs. 67.306 (2023:
Loss of Rs. 56.694) million on export of ethanol.
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34.1

34.2

COST OF SALES

Cost of raw materials
consumed

Stores and spare
parts consumed

Packing materials

Salaries, wages and
other benefits

Fuel, electricity and
water charges

Other manufacturing
expenses

Repairs and
maintenance

Depreciation

Work-in-process
Opening
Closing

Less:

Transfer price of molasses

Sale of fusel oil - net

Purchase of bagasse

Transfer price of bagasse

Stock adjustment of
bagasse in hand

Trading activities

50% share of tariq trading

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods
Opening
Closing

Other Manufacturing Expenses

Security services

Printing and stationery
Vehicle running and hire
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Others

Sugar Ethanol Other reportable segements Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)

5,679,380 3,187,226 7,137,723 6,619,282 - - 12,817,103 9,806,508

148,024 229,168 113,160 97,189 - - 261,184 326,357

54,255 36,975 - - - - 54,255 36,975

341 338,498 308,597 114,670 90,546 31,060 28,166 484,228 427,309
5,952 4,275 216,673 113,583 10,575 8,672 233,200 126,530

342 83,718 65,044 59,020 47,452 42,597 38,777 185,335 151,273
12,619 25,052 3,025 30,849 3,698 7,187 19,342 63,088

5.1.2 32,781 34,712 24,316 27,017 28,514 25,368 85,611 87,097
6,355,227 3,891,049 7,668,587 7,025,918 116,444 108,170 14,140,258 11,025,137

6,565 5,681 - - - - 6,565 5,681
(8,705) (6,565) - - - - (8,705) (6,565)
(2,140) (884) - - - - (2,140) (884)

6,353,087 3,890,165 7,668,587 7,025,918 116,444 108,170 14,138,118 11,024,253
(676,960) (527,591) - - - - (676,960) (527,591)

- - (3,325) (3,453) - - (3,325) (3,453)

177,822 83,900 - - - - 177,822 83,900

(209,265) (106,720) - - - - (209,265) (106,720)

(39,327) (2,264) - - - - (39,327) (2,264)

- - - - 185,615 341,415 185,615 341,415

- - - - - (2,723) - (2,723)

(747,730) (552,675) (3,325) (3,453) 185,615 338,692 (565,440) (217,436)
5,605,357 3,337,490 7,665,262 7,022,465 302,059 446,862 13,572,678 10,806,817
1,600,721 1,325,755 1,507,587 532,865 - 37,223 3,108,308 1,895,843
(2,845,696) (1,600,721) (939,146) (1,507,587) - - (3,784,842) | | (3,108,308)
(1,244,975) (274,966) 568,441 (974,722) - 37,223 (676,534) (1,212,465)
4,360,382 3,062,524 8,233,703 6,047,743 302,059 484,085 12,896,144 9,594,352

Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 5.35 (2023: Rs. 11.635) million in respect of defined benefit plan - gratuity.

16,208 14,033 10,805 9,355 13,790 13,225 40,803 36,613

711 626 474 417 30 64 1,215 1,107

11,203 10,905 7,469 7,270 1,873 1,703 20,545 19,878

22,352 15,668 14,030 8,799 13,377 11,422 49,759 35,889

1,392 950 509 568 46 30 1,947 1,548

31,852 22,862 25,733 21,043 13,481 12,333 71,066 56,238

83,718 65,044 59,020 47,452 42,597 38,777 185,335 151,273
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36.1
36.2

36.3

36.4
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Sugar Ethanol Other reportable segement Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
DISTRIBUTION COST
Sugar bags handling expenses 6,491 5,503 - - - - 6,491 5,503
Export transportation and
other expenses 1,370 10,183 1,191,029 374,688 - - 1,192,399 384,871
Salaries and other benefits 35.1 2,625 2,230 6,001 4,492 - - 8,626 6,722
Marking fees 5,703 4,439 - - - - 5,703 4,439
16,189 22,375 1,197,030 379,180 - - 1,213,219 401,555
Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 0.744 (2023: 0.322) million in respect of defined benefit plan - gratuity.
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other benefits 36.1 37,260 34,011 24,977 22,814 - - 62,237 56,825
CEO salaries and other benefits 36.2 16,350 16,147 10,901 10,765 - - 27,251 26,912
Rent, rates and taxes 2 4 1 3 - - 3 7
Communication charges 2,103 1,859 2,422 1,477 - - 4,525 3,336
Traveling and conveyance 821 1,169 3,878 2,048 - - 4,699 3,217
Printing and stationery 2,586 2,368 778 873 - - 3,364 3,241
Entertainment 1,442 1,592 943 999 - - 2,385 2,591
Vehicle running 9,153 8,846 5,754 5,328 - - 14,907 14,174
Repairs and maintenance 1,388 2,508 554 611 - - 1,942 3,119
Insurance 1,972 1,880 1,306 1,263 - - 3,278 3,143
Fees and subscription 1,727 2,595 1,087 1,564 - - 2,814 4,159
Legal and professional 1,782 4,602 938 1,694 - - 2,720 6,296
Software license and
consultancy fees 4,383 3,980 2,922 2,528 - - 7,305 6,508
Auditors' remuneration 36.3 1,613 1,515 838 192 - - 2,451 2,307
Charity and donations 36.4 3,300 3,240 2,200 2,160 - - 5,500 5,400
Newspaper and periodicals 96 84 63 56 - - 159 140
Utilities 4,639 3,197 3,093 2,114 - - 7,732 5311
Deprecation
-Operating fixed assets 5.1.2 7,239 6,047 4,826 4,031 - - 12,065 10,078
-Right-of-use-assets 5,211 4,680 3,474 3,120 - - 8,685 7,800
-Investment property 10 11 6 7 - - 16 18
Security charges 943 884 629 589 - - 1,572 1,473
Meeting expenses 1,583 1,566 1,056 1,044 - - 2,639 2,610
Miscellaneous expenses 428 724 255 431 - - 683 1,155
106,031 103,509 72,901 66,311 - - 178,932 169,820
Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 1.913 (2023: Rs. 3.945) million in respect of defined benefit plan - gratuity.
CEO salaries and other benefits include Rs. 1.85 (2023: Rs. 1.511) million in respect of defined benefit plan - gratuity.
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory Auditors
Annual audit fee 720 720 480 480 - - 1,200 1,200
Half yearly review fee 120 120 80 80 - - 200 200
Code of Corporate
Governance Review fee 75 75 50 50 - - 125 125
Out of pocket expenses 368 300 228 182 - - 596 482
1,283 1,215 838 792 - - 2,121 2,007
Cost Auditors
Audit fee 330 300 - - - - 330 300
1,613 1,515 838 792 - - 2,451 2,307

Charity and Donations to 'Al-Siraj Welfare Foundation' amounting to Rs. 2 million (2023: Rs. 2.50 million) and 'Arshad Nadeem' amounting to Rs. 2.50 million (2023:
Rs. nil) exceeds the limit prescribed under Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017. None of the Directors or their spouse have any interest in the donees’
fund.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Loss from biological asset - net - 367 - - - - - 367
Expected credit loss 13.2 29,050 580 - - - - 29,050 580
Provision for loan to growers 2,973 9,730 - - - - 2,973 9,730
Workers' profit participation fund 772 19,931 94,776 186,953 (1,408) 4,086 94,140 210,970
Workers' welfare fund
- Current (12) 944 12,281 8,811 (535) 1,372 11,734 11,127
- Prior 1,141 (47) 4,843 (638) (692) - 5,292 (685)
33,924 31,505 111,900 195,126 (2,635) 5458 143,189 232,089
FINANCE COST
Markup on short term borrowings 305,360 200,412 189,370 163,420 - - 494,730 363,832
Interest on Workers Profit
Participation Fund 43 2 332 119 - - 375 121
Mark-up on liability against
Right-of-use assets 1,856 257 1,237 171 - - 3,093 428
Interest on market committee fee 1,942 1,968 - - - - 1,942 1,968
Bank charges and guarantee
commission 5,333 6,731 3,450 4,097 - 650 8,783 11,478
314,534 209,370 194,389 167,807 - 650 508,923 377,827

..

B,
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Sugar Ethanol Other reportable segements Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
39 OTHERINCOME
Income from financial assets
Markup on loan to growers 1,124 2,137 - - - - 1,124 2,137
Income from TDR / T-Bills /
PLS deposits 3,426 4,342 14,878 72,509 - - 18,304 76,851
Effect of unwinding of interest
free loan to employees 39 109 25 73 - - 64 182
Net amortization of grant income - 848 - 290 - 85 - 1,223
Gain on mutual fund investment - - 49,831 - - - 49,831 -
Dividend 4,563 3,778 131,873 101,119 - - 136,436 104,897
9,152 11,214 196,607 173,991 - 85 205,759 185,290
Income from non - financial
assets
Scrap sales - 1,232 - - - - - 1,232
Deposit forfeited - - - 15,062 - - - 15,062
Exchange gain - - 2,414 5,710 - - 2,414 5,710
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 896 199 597 132 - - 1,493 331
Income from biological
asset - net 39.1 1,325 - - - - - 1,325 -
Income from Bio-chemical lab 718 137 - - - - 718 137
Miscellaneous 201 1,006 135 671 1,145 1,249 1,481 2,926
3,140 2,574 3,146 21,575 1,145 1,249 7,431 25,398
12,292 13,788 199,753 195,566 1,145 1334 213,190 210,688
39.1 Farm operations is a distinguishable business segment as per the criteria specified in International Financial
Reporting Standard - 8 "Operating Segment", but it is substantially below the threshold mentioned for reportable
segment under IFRS - 8, therefore, this is not classified as a reportable segment in these financial statements.
Sugar Ethanol Other reportable segements Total
Note 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
40 LEVY AND TAXATION (Rupees in thousand)
Levy
Final Tax Levy 40.1 684 3,750 117,848 116,329 - - 118,532 120,079
Minimum Tax Levy 402 34,110 - (2,732) - 5,053 - 36,431 -
34,794 3,750 115,116 116,329 5,053 - 154,963 120,079
Taxation
Current 10,870 56,379 102,036 46,258 (2,716) (1,175) 110,190 101,462
Prior 26,926 1,132 - 12,774 - - 26,926 13,906
Deferred (37,217) 84,216 (23,115) - (1,875) - (62,207) 84,216
579 141,727 78,921 59,032 (4,591) (1,175) 74,909 199,584
35,373 145,477 194,037 175,361 462 (1,175) 229,872 319,663
40.1 This represents portion™of minimum tax and Taxes paid as final taxes under INncome lax Ordinance, 2007,
categorized as levy as per IFRIC 21 and IAS 37.
40.2 This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing
levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37.
40.3 Reconciliation between current tax charged under the Ordinance with current tax recognized in the profit or
loss, is as follows:
Sugar Ethanol Other reportable segements Total
Note 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Current tax liability for the
year as per the Ordinance 45,664 60,129 217,152 162,587 2,337 (1,175) 265,153 221,541
Income tax under IAS-12 (10,870) (56,379) (102,036) (46,258) 2,716 1,175 (110,190) (101,462)
Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/IAS 37  (34,794) (3,750) (115,116) (116,329) (5,053) - (154,963) (120,079)
Difference - - - - - - - -
40.4 Income tax returns of the Company have been filed up to tax year 2024 which is considered to be deemed
assessment. However, the Commissioner of Income tax may, at any time during the period of five years from the
date of filing of return, select the deemed assessment for audit.
40.5 The Company filed petition WP No. 3449 of 2023 challenging the imposition of Super Tax for the tax year 2023

before the Islamabad High Court. The Court granted a stay and issued an order on November 11, 2023, linking
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40.7
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the case to the ruling in WP No. 4027 of 2022. In that ruling, the Court excluded from the Super Tax calculation
all classes of income subject to final tax under other provisions of the Ordinance. Additionally, it disallowed the
exclusion of brought-forward depreciation, business losses, and amortization allowances otherwise available to
taxpayers under the Ordinance.

Subsequently, through its order dated March 15, 2024, the Islamabad High Court accepted the petition and
restrained the tax department from recovering the Super Tax. The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) later filed
Appeal No. 710 of 2024 before the Islamabad High Court, contesting the judgment dated March 15, 2024, issued
by the Single Bench. Nonetheless, as a prudent measure, the Company has recorded a provision for Super Tax
for the tax year 2023"

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued an order for the tax year 2014, demanding Rs. 28.751
million in income tax due to purportedly incorrect apportionment of expenses between NTR and FTR, disallowed
expenses/cash withdrawals, and unaccounted brought forward tax losses. The Company sought rectification
from the ACIR and subsequently appealed to the Commissioner Appeals Inland Revenue. The Commissioner
Appeals provided relief by allowing expenses/cash withdrawals up to Rs. 26 million but upheld disallowances
amounting to Rs. 140 million against the Company. The Company appealed the disallowance of Rs. 140 million
to the Tribunal. Interestingly, the Commissioner Appeals also filed an appeal against the granted relief of Rs. 26
million. The tax advisor of the Company foresees a favorable outcome, hence no provision has been accounted
for in these financial statements, assuming the situation will resolve positively for the Company.

In the year 2020, the Company underwent an audit for the tax year 2017 under Section 177 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. After completing the audit, the concerned Officer Inland Revenue issued an amended order
under Section 122(I), which acknowledged the absence of taxable income due to the availability of carried
forward losses from previous tax years. However, there was an oversight in not allowing or determining the actual
losses to be carried forward and providing proper credit for taxes paid, amounting to Rs. 20.978 million. To rectify
this mistake, a rectification letter was issued under Section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, allowing for
the inclusion of actual losses to be carried forward. Despite this rectification, the refund of Rs. 20.978 million is
still pending and awaiting approval.

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Net profit for the year 1,550,682 3,684,617

)

(No. of shares)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 17,362,300 17,362,300

Basic and diluted earnings per share - Rupees 41.1 89.31 212.22

Diluted earnings per share is same as the basic, as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in
issue as on the reporting date which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is
exercised.
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42.2

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Note

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

Profit before taxation 1,625,591 4,004,280
Adjustment for:
Depreciation
-Operating fixed assets 97,676 97,175
-Right-of-use-assets 8,685 7,800
-Investment property 16 18
Levy 154,963 -
Markup on loan to growers (1,124) (2,137)
Provision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity 9,326 17,413
Income from TDR / T-Bills / PLS deposits (18,304) (76,851)
Net amortization of grant income - (1,223)
Dividend income (136,436) (104,897)
Gain on fixed assets (1,493) (331)
Finance cost 508,923 377,827
Provision for trade debts 29,050 580
Market committee fees 4,891 4,008
(Income) / loss from biological asset - net (1,325) 367
Workers' Welfare Fund
- Current 11,734 11,127
- Prior 5,292 (685)
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 94,140 210,970
766,014 541,161
Working capital changes 421 (2,171,248) (1,311,198)
Cash generated from operations 220,357 3,234,243
Working capital changes
Increase in current assets
Biological assets (1,701) (502)
Stores and spare parts 23,120 (119,396)
Stock-in-trade (1,182,169) (735,848)
Trade debts (417,230) 203,473
Loans and advances 542,868 (1,472,521)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (62,060) (33)
Other receivables 4,042 30,993
(1,093,130) (2,093,834)
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other payables (1,078,118) 782,636
Cash used in working capital (2,171,248) (1,311,198)
Reconcillation of movement of liabilities to cash flow used in financing activities
Long term Lease Dividend Short Total
financing rental term
including including borrowing
current current
maturity maturity
(Rupees in thousands)
Balance as on October 01, 2023 - 15,350 62,516 2,747,938 2,825,804
Dividend declared - 538,232 - 538,232
Interest on lease liability - 3,093 - 3,093
Re-assessment of lease - 2,021 2,021
Proceeds from long term loans - - -
Proceeds from short term borrowings 9,692,369 9,692,369
Repayment of short term borrowings - (9,867,558) (9,867,558)
Lease rental paid (10,371) - - (10,371)
Dividend paid - (537,077) - (537,077)
(10371) (537,077) (175,189) (722,637)
Balance as on September 30, 2024 10,093 63,671 2,572,749 2,646,513
Balance as on October 01, 2022 23,735 7,751 48,220 2,951,236 3,030,942
Dividend declared - - 1,388,985 - 1,388,985
Net amotization of grant income (1,223) - - (1,223)
Interest on lease liability - 428 428
Re-assessment of lease 15,716 - 15,716
Proceeds from short term borrowings - - 6,544,551 6,544,551
Repayment of long term loans (22,512) - (22,512)
Repayment of short term borrowings - - (6,747,849) (6,747,849)
Lease rental paid (8,545) - - (8,545)
Dividend paid - - (1,374,689) - (1,374,689)
(22,512) (8,545) (1,374,689) (203,298) (1,609,044)
Balance as on September 30, 2023 - 15,350 62,516 2,747,938 2,825,804
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

AL-ABBAS
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Chief Executive Executives Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)
Managerial remuneration 18,545 18,545 74,918 57,517 93,463 76,062
Medical allowances 1,855 1,855 7,480 5,703 9,335 7,558
Leave fare allowance 5,000 5,000 - - 5,000 5,000
Other perquisites 8,351 7,022 28,145 23,283 36,496 30,305
Retirement benefits 1,850 1,511 8,475 6,431 10,325 7,942
Total 35,601 33,933 119,018 92,934 154,619 126,867
No. of persons 1 1 27 21 28 22

Chief Executive Officer is provided with the Company maintained car for business and personal use.

The Company has paid Rs. 2.500 (2023: Rs. 2.438) million for meeting fees to its Non-Executive Directors

during the year.

Thirteen (2023: Thirteen) Executives of the Company are also provided with the Company maintained cars

for the business and their personal use.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial Assets
At amortized cost
Loans including current portion
Long term deposits
Trade debts - gross
Trade deposits
Interest accrued - TDRs
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments

Note

13
15
18
17
20
16

At fair value through other comprehensive income

Long term investments

Financial Liabilities
At amortized cost

Lease liabilities including current maturity

29

Market committee fees payable including current maturity 24

Trade and other payables
Accrued markup

Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend

26
27
28

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

2024

2023

(Rupees in thousand)

371 1,679
19,461 19,961
686,046 268,816
66,294 2,214
970 76

1,750 30
86,062 67,929
1,142,489 2,645,062
2,003,443 3,005,767
200,233 123,638
2,203,696 3,129,405
10,093 15,350
21,664 19,722
1,251,372 1,277,132
15,398 49,508
2,572,749 2,747,938
63,671 62,516
3,934,947 4,172,166

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(interest / markup rate risk and price risk). The Company's overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance. Overall, risks arising from the Company's financial assets and liabilities are limited. The
Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change from previous

)
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period in the manner described in notes below.

- Creditrisk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies.

45.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties
fails to meet its contractual obligation and it mainly arises from balances with banks and financial institutions,
trade debts, loans, advances, deposits and other receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. Out of the total financial assets
of Rs. 2.204 (2023: Rs. 3.129) billion, the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs.
2.202 (2023: Rs. 3.128) billion.

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking
into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and credit
terms are approved by the Chief Executive Officer. Where considered necessary, advance payments are
obtained from certain parties. Sales made to exporters are secured through letters of credit. The management
set out a maximum credit period in respect of certain customers as well in order to reduce the credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation
to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Company believes
that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any credit
enhancements. The maximum exposure to credit risk before any provisions at the reporting date is:

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Loans including current portion 371 1,679
Long term deposits 19,461 19,961
Trade debts - gross 686,046 268,816
Trade deposits 66,294 2,214
Interest accrued - TDRs 970 76
Short term investments 1,142,489 2,645,062
Long term investments 200,233 123,638
Other receivables 890 30
Bank balances 84,993 66,814
2,201,747 3,128,290

Loans
The Company believes that no impairment allowance is required in respect of loans because these are not
past due. The Company is actively pursuing for the recovery of debts and the Company does not expect
any of its employees failing to meet their obligations.

Trade debts

Break-up of trade debts into export and local is disclosed in note number 13 of the financial statements.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements and loss allowance for trade debts
at the reporting date by division is:
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Sugar 623,040 103,455
Ethanol 46,993 149,348
Chemical and alloys 9,635 9,636
Bagasse 6,377 6,377
686,045 268,816
Expected credit loss (ECL) 2024 2023
The aging of trade debts at the Gross trade ECL Gross trade ECL
reporting date was: debts debts
1-30 days 670,033 29,050 252,804 -
31-150 days - - - -
Over 150-days 16,012 16,012 16,012 16,012
686,045 45,062 268,816 16,012

The Company has fully recognized a loss allowance for trade debts overdue by more than three years, as
these amounts are unlikely to be received. For the remaining receivables, the Company expects most of
the amount to be recoverable; therefore, a loss allowance of Rs. 29.050 million has been recorded during
the year.

Quality of financial assets

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Bank balances
With external credit rating
Al+ 84,196 64,817
Al 611 1,861
A2 50 -
A3 136 136
84,993 66,814
45.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected
or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The
Company's approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or at the risk of Company's reputation. The Company’s liquidity management involves
projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to fulfill its obligation, monitoring
statement of financial position liquidity ratios against internal and external requirements and maintaining
debt financing plans.
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45.3

45.3.1

The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities:

2024
Carrying Contractual Six Six to One to Two to
amount cash flows months twelve two five years
or less months years and over

(Rupees in thousand)

Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities including

current portion 10,093 10,093 5,047 5,046 - -
Market Committee fee payable
including current portion 21,664 21,664 719 719 1,317 18,909
Trade and other payables 1,251,372 1,251,372 274,508 976,864 - -
Accrued markup 15,398 15,398 15,398 - - -
Short-term borrowings 2,572,749 2,572,749 2,572,749 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 63,671 63,671 - 63,671 - -
3,934,947 3,934,947 2,868,421 1,046,300 1,317 18,909
2023
Carrying Contractual Six Six to Two to Three to
amount cash flows months twelve three five years
or less months years and over

(Rupees in thousand)

Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities including

current portion 15,350 15,350 3,838 3,837 7,675 -
Market Committee fee payable
including current portion 19,722 19,722 - - 1,438 18,284
Trade and other payables 1,277,132 1,277,132 316,515 960,617 - -
Accrued markup 49,508 49,508 49,508 - - -
Short-term borrowings 2,747,938 2,747,938 2,747,938 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 62,516 62,516 - 62,516 - -
4,172,166 4,172,166 3,117,799 1,026,970 9,113 18,284

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund availability through
adequate credit facilities. At September 30, 2024, the Company has Rs. 4.677 (2023: Rs. 2.902) Billion available
and unutilized short term borrowings limit from financial institutions and also has Rs. 84.993 and Rs. 1,142,489
(2023: Rs. 66.814 and Rs. 2,645,062) Million being balances at banks and short term investments. Based on the
above, management believes the liquidity risk is insignificant.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates, foreign exchange rates or the equity prices due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity
in the market. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and other price risk are as
follows:

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from future
economic transaction or receivables or payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company
is exposed to foreign exchange currency risk mainly on ethanol denominated in US Dollars. Approximately
3.68% from sugar segment and 98.29% from ethanol segment is denominated in currencies other than Pak
Rupees which forms 65.58% of the total gross revenue of the Company. The Company's exposure to foreign
currency risk for US Dollars is as follows:
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2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Foreign debtors 46,745 149,348
Advance from foreign customers (38,965) (223,192)
Export finance scheme (EFS) (47,958) (97,833)
Net exposure (40,178) (171,677)
The following significant exchange rate has been applied:
Average rate Reporting date rate
2024 2023 2024 2023
USD to PKR 279.39 270.00 277.91 286.90

Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the USD with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit for the year have been higher / (lower) by the amount shown below:

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)
Effect on profit or loss
US Dollars 4,018 17,168

The weakening of the PKR against USD would have had an equal but opposite impact on the pre tax profit.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets
/ liabilities of the Company.

45.3.2 Interest raterisk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate . The interest rate exposure of the Company arises from long

term financing, short term borrowings, loans to growers, short term investments and bank balances.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

2024 2023
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 1,143,605 2,659,029
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 47,782 30,409
Financial liabilities 2,572,749 2,747,938

Fair value sensitivity analysis

Company hold short term investment of Rs. 1,142.489 million at fair value through profit and loss and the
releted gain in reported in note 39.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments.
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased)

profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.
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Statement of profit
or loss 100 bp
increase decrease
(Rupees in thousand)

Financial assets

As at September 30, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity 478 (478)

As at September 30, 2023
Cash flow sensitivity 304 (304)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets
/ liabilities of the Company.

Financial liabilities

As at September 30, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity (25,727) 25,727

As at September 30, 2023
Cash flow sensitivity (27,479) 27,479

45.3.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The
Company is exposed to price risk with respect to equity investment. Investments are monitored through
continuous trend prevailing in the market for which an investment committee has been setup to take
appropriate decision.

A 10% increase / decrease in share prices at year end would have increased / decreased the unrealized
gain on remeasurement of fair value investments through OCl as follows:

Share prices 10%
(Rupees in thousand)

As at September 30, 2024

Investment at fair value through profit or loss 20,023 (20,023)
Fair value through OClI 20,023 (20,023)
Export transportation - Distribution expenses - -

Investment at fair value through profit or loss 12,364 (12,364)
Fair value through OCI 12,364 (12,364)

45.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are remeasured at the market prices prevailing on
the statement of financial position date. The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities
reported in the financial statements approximate their fair value.
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45.4.1 In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, the Company classifies its long
term investments in terms of following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Details of the Company's long term investments in terms of fair value hierarchy, explained above, at
September 30, 2024 is as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
------------- (Rupees in thousand) ---------------

Long-term investments 200,233 - -
Short-term investments - 1,087,889 -
September 30, 2024 200,233 1,087,889 -
September 30, 2023 123,638 2,459,221 -

45,5 Capital risk management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company'’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and
take other measures commensuration to the circumstances. The Company finances its expansions projects
through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate
mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk and maximize profitability.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total shareholders equity
plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings including any finance cost thereon, less
cash and bank balances. The Company's strategy is to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as
at the statement of financial position are as follows:

2024 2023
Note (Rupees in thousand)

Accrued markup 15,398 49,508

Short term borrowings 2,572,749 2,747,938

Total debt 2,588,147 2,797,446
Less:

Cash and bank balances (86,062) (67,929)

Short term investment (1,142,489) (2,645,062)

(1,228,551) (2,712,991)

Net debt A 1,359,596 84,455

Shareholders' equity B 8,001,232 6,922,824

Equity and net debt C=A+B 9,360,828 7,007,279

Gearing ratio (D=A/Q) 14.52% 1.21%
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46.1

a)

b)

)

d)

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Sugar Unit

Sugarcane crushing capacity per day in M.T

Total days of actual crushing

Sugar cane crushed during the year in M.T

Sugarcane yield

Capacity in M.T based on number of days
operated and sugarcane yield

Actual productionin M. T

Ethanol Unit

Unit- |

Capacity in liters per day

Actual no. of days operated

Capacity in liters based on number of days operated
Actual production in liters

Unit- I

Capacity in liters per day

Actual no. of days operated

Capacity in liters based on number of days operated
Actual production in Liters

Chemical alloys and others

Capacity in M.T based on 320 days
Actual production in M.T

Power

Capacity in Kilo Watts Hour (KWH) per day

Actual no. of days operated

Capacity in KWH based on number of days operated
Actual production in KWH

Tank terminal
Capacity per month based on ethanol in M.T
Actual capacity utilized per month based on ethanol in M.T

Reasons for shortfall in capacity utilization

Sugar
Lesser availability of sugarcane.

Ethanol
Lesser availability of molasses and its quality.

Chemical, alloys and power

Production facilities was suspended due to increase in fuel prices.

Tank terminal
Mainly due to repair and maintanance work.

2024

8,500
82.918
489,122
10.26%

72,314
50,184

85,000

330
28,050,000
27,847,643

85,000

316
26,860,000
27,310,484

27,220

312,000

22,850
4,000

2023

8,500
68.553
400,820
10.52%

61,304
42,175

85,000
341
28,985,000
28,601,567

85,000
337
28,645,000
28,520,980

27,220

312,000

22,850
2,000
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SUGAR MILLS LTD.

SEGMENT REPORTING

)

2024
Other
Sugar Ethanol operating Total 2023
Note segment

(Rupees in thousand)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets 5,230,061 5,891,749 575,847 11,697,657 12,170,935
Unallocated segment assets - - - 448,288 274,671

12,145,945 12,445,606
Segment liabilities 1,268,899 2,509,146 45,574 3,823,619 5,220,341
Unallocated segment liabilities - - - 321,094 302,441

4,144,713 5,522,782

Unallocated additions in

operating fixed assets - - - 10,469 23,067
Addition in capital work in progress5.2 - - 63,340 63,340 42,270
73,809 65,337
Segment statement of profit or loss

Sales - net 33 4,836,875 11,398,163 272,733 16,507,771 14,569,235
Cost of sales 34 (4,360,382)  (8,233,703) (302,059) (12,896,144) (9,594,352)
Gross profit 476,493 3,164,460 (29,326) 3,611,627 4,974,883
Distribution cost 35 (16,189)  (1,197,030) - (1,213,219) (401,555)
Administrative expenses 36 (106,031) (72,901) - (178,932) (169,820)
Operating segment results 354,273 1,894,529 (29,326) 2,219,476 4,403,508
Other operating expenses 37 (33,924) (111,900) 2,635 (143,189) (232,089)
Finance cost 38 (314,534) (194,389) - (508,923) (377,827)
Other income 39 12,292 199,753 1,145 213,190 210,688
Profit before taxation and levy 18,107 1,787,993 (25,546) 1,780,554 4,004,280
Levy 40 (34,794) (115,116) (5,053) (154,963) (120,079)
Profit before taxation (16,687) 1,672,877 (30,599) 1,625,591 3,884,201
Taxation 40 (579) (78.921) 4,591 (74.909) (199,584)
Profit after taxation (17,266) 1,593,956 (26,008) 1,550,682 3,684,617
Depreciation 40,020 29,142 28,514 97,676 97,175

Revenue reported in note 33 is generated from external customers. The inter transfer of molasses and
bagasse from sugar segment to ethanol segment is accounted for as a reduction of cost of production of
sugar segment in note 34.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Companys' accounting policies
described in note number 4 to these financial statements.

Revenue from major products

The break up of Companys' revenue from external customers for major products is given in note 33 to
these financial statements.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers (5% or above of segment's gross sales) of sugar segment represents Rs.
3,523 (2023: Rs. 2,622) million of total sugar segment gross revenue amounting to Rs. 5,703 (2023: Rs.
4,439) million, ethanol segment of Rs. 9,012 (2023: Rs. 9,343) million of total ethanol segment revenue
amounting to Rs. 1,142,489 (2023: Rs. 10,287) million and other operating segment represents Rs. 284
(2023: Rs. 502) million of total other operating segment revenue amounting to Rs. 317 (2023: Rs. 565)
million.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties comprise of associated undertakings, Directors of the Company, Key Management
Personnel and post employment benefit plan. The Company in the normal course of business carries out
transactions with various related parties. Amounts due to / from related parties (if any) are shown in under
respective notes to the financial statement. Remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Executives
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48.1

48.2

being the Key Management Personnel are disclosed in note 43 to these financial statements. Transactions

with related parties are as follows:

Post Employment Benefit Plan

- Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited - Employee Gratuity Fund

Loan installments recovered from employees
on behalf of Employees Gratuity Fund

Paid to Employees Gratuity Fund on account of
installment recovered from employees

Gratuity paid on behalf of gratuity fund

Contribution paid to Employees Gratuity Fund

Balance receivable / (payable to) from
employee gratuity fund at the end of the year

Key Managerial Personnel

Installment recovered from Company Secretary
Balance receivable from Company Secretary
at amortized value at the end of the year"

Investment in Mutual Funds - Related Party

Investment made in NIT funds

Investment redeemed in NIT funds

Balance in NIT funds at the end of the year

Investment made in JS Investments Limited Funds
Investment redeemed in JS Investments Limited Funds
Balance in JS Investments Limited funds at year end

Gross Sales - Related Party
Shezan International Limited

Associated Undertaking
- MBJ Health Association
Donation given

2024 2023
(Rupees in thousand)

6,898 6,522
- 10,000
1,997 1,585
- 10,000
10,932 36,983
- 1,200
- 1,136
2,474,567 723,100
(2,494,638) (380,000)
372,864 353,280
844,500 1,042,200
(1,892,869) (70,000)
- 997,103

20,130 -
1,000 1,000

During the year, the Company has paid dividend to its Directors and other related parties amounting to

Rs. 330.413 (2023: Rs. 854.624) million.

Following are the name of other related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions

during the year:

S. No. Name of Related Party Relationship

1. Asim Ghani Chief Executive Officer
2 Asma Aves Cochinwala Director

3 Aves Cochinwala Spouse of director

4 Darakshan Zohaib Director

5 Haji Abdul Ghani Associated Undertaking
6 Haroon Askari Director

7 Hira Asim Spouse of chief executive officer
8 Muhammad Salman Hussain Chawla Director

9 Muhammad Siddiq Khokhar Director

10 Shahid Hussian Jatoi Director

11 Suleman Lalani Director

12 Zakaria Usman Director
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DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AND COMPANY'S LISTING ON ISLAMIC INDEX:

2024 2023

(Rupees in thousand)
Financing arrrangements as per Islamic mode - 170,000
Shariah Compliant bank balances as at year end 12,315 12,958
Profit earned from Shariah Compliant bank during the year 1,936 1,456
Markup paid on islamic mode of financing during the year 40,498 48,174
Interest paid on conventional financing during the year 454,232 315,658
Dividend received from Shariah Compliant Company 2,367 2,582
NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS
The board of directors of the Company in its meeting held on January 02, 2025 have proposed a final cash
dividend of Rs. 25 (2023: Rs. 6) per share amounting to Rs. 434.058 (2023: Rs. 104.174) Million for approval of
the members in the annual general meeting to be held on January 28, 2025. The financial statements for the
year ended September 30, 2024 do not include the effect of the proposed cash dividend which will be accounted
for in the financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2025.
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees at year end and average number of employees during the year were 765 (2023:
890) and 903 (2023: 944) respectively.
CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified, whenever necessary, for the purpose of comparison
and better presentation. However, there were no any material classification in the financial statements.
GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated.
DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on January 02, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
~ Asim Ghani Darakshan Zohaib ~ Samir Hajani
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

3)




Annual Report 2024
Ly 7 b J o R

3 sl Uz S GF U P Siume s 552 s 2 S P 7o L6656 U 2024, 30 st Ft
e U a1 Ul e G s s S S 215 3T L SOl 2 Ty Sy s
JJ&!J@L&JGLJUQuﬁu’oig/t»t/K%L:,ghgfw,é,;géL;«’l/_»,ﬁg/‘Juu@uu,;LJwi@{;
‘/?‘@’J,C’:.:/Ulpffl:;u:{JlﬁjL’ai;d):?di’;}}!/'l/;!r@“l(ﬁdyc:/l;ig“/;ﬁy&“LJL/;’Z/L(U%KJA&JM/
Sy ST e e SIS KL 2 1 S U ST JT PS5 — st
Pl poord L0 S8 r ot 5 1ot T St e et e 6 sl
et P e QO e e sl S S U Tk dme Sise
PR BB S g S ane S Cs Bl R S s L e gl Sl
I S Ve Fona S U P S B I sl S st 2 0N G Qe Sbdad e e S
ufd‘f'ra‘ﬁufdﬂrgd‘;d/u:@/ AL o ey 68 S iy UTimdioe Lo s bl m G
ce b s IEL JT G 6O sl it 2
L LI TSt e Gl 6 S GF S Tt s U 1z e s sl e 2
/FG{/}L/{jﬁ/?b)/'}ngLIYLJﬁ"i/}l/'j.}ﬁ}:@Ju:uw&[&’rJhrTujﬁugf/b‘lgc)UﬂCL- ARy SF
e /{L
Institute of Cost ands/ Institue of Chartered Accountants of Pakistm(ﬁﬁid@)ﬁﬂ
J1I#1 € Management Association of Pakistarbb/lgd/ Mangement International
&'ég}%}éﬁ’f-&g{_"a/{/KJ’J/KUJJU’Q}}}JULLLQ’?&) ;/q;fg/b@/d{J?,T"Best Corporate Award"
VLLb/QMJJTJQVJ&{J?«TQL_LLE/ng%U: d;ﬁuﬁjv71,_+ﬁigﬁéj.£z£/ IS ) 5
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate GovernancesCompanies Act 201 Zfé.dﬂ'/if’upll
‘;LLw;"z:uf:f&‘jgﬁuﬂjfgjﬂjdfjjx§_l/,i‘g3/Jf~?ycﬁﬁxJUr2@&is’a:/uguﬁRegulation ,2019
UGS LA 35St DL A5 3Thu LG el 3 ey e QI ST b
ST 5200 GIUt 20247 3002 FUL UG L e b F L Us il S A e bl b Ust
_WIFETE LA Su S s A
e CTAE ey il o ST 1ol s Byt o 5T SELCs A T
;,(,us,lz.g(ﬂumwgzﬂ.oy’t?Kuﬂ"ﬁéj.é&%uugzug&gJﬁ/&f.ﬁ,f"‘(}/ﬁdu@{/ ST U Sl
NS S T S IS g TOIl Zallt SN (8T 0 o S RS S PSS, S
el WL e pe I E e b SNt I s G S AL g S 2 o
LGRS UR Ut e Fe B S S S e o PRt e b e S GO
Cn BIGL Lo ber Gty sk Gach bt Qo 22 b P58 SIS e unF e 65 L L
e QA2 T el ik
Ty Gk LS S St LD b S e e L b Lt 15
sy ?;Jz/f/?.%}éﬁjfdil,‘ a;‘/l/f
B EIUE U s LIRS G sl Rust S, P o6 o Aol e e St
L oG I I 2 L 6 e sl s P djg,/tﬂ;/@d}u;‘ué/wu@LJ”%W:_%L[
e e LA L € SR L a1 2 s Ui b o e s
7/{4/
BI-JWK;
O

January 02, 2025




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

ALGSE
Bl STt AUt S A L e D E Sl (PACRAYS Tt S
-uga".)zfjwuubﬁé"(?‘“uﬁ

by 7 ve .
2&J2019ﬁ£/ (Jfdef,/{Jgdfﬁf)}.ﬁ,{é’»J
Lb‘w;/u!::y.KJ’:{uﬁééUlul{_JJ:pJ‘[d/Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governanclé0192.&:{
_cb,@/)u'.f“/:).é’ic“_/:}f ol A

Jﬂpﬂn,@lrﬁm‘uf/.,gf‘%t/u?ur’@i}cd}jééﬁj'dﬁqL&Lu!/u:m,x»w?lu’)}/?@wf"%M.
i u&)a%d@w&f«‘aL“/’:.;'l;!'Ku;b%lJLx‘wuJ/lu/ﬁ!};.)}u()fwi})é;uiLmuub;/ﬁd/gu&um;l[}yl.
~§-Jﬂ(? e

IS
%/

73 (=7 &?Jtp
A ATEL

January 02, 2025 :U:'/

)

35-




Annual Report 2024

SR AR
LT *963.045 (2023: 7519574 u U FR A AL LI L 1A H Gt e

v
wﬁ;&]&fﬂ;%kﬁ)@&f?

Zdnibyiz -‘a.@*‘jl/z_/,bw{f/;Ul/u’l::yﬁgu@w‘jdiCompanies Act ,2017 Section 227(2)(f)
ARG EALE FL e o Bl i £E ATz Ao e
- '.:’uCJ
-+%d)g5qu&{JLﬂw»g%ﬂd@ﬂ%{@nz;_/ua@&}ym@}/mgu@é%ﬁ,mz%p
e bl e Bt HEE L LY EiF st Sa e i L AT,
Jd%f@ﬁfw_;,d/ G PPl L8 S el ol b 210 ol 8 E S B2 3713 3T
LSBT L L S pLsd L fse AT
S L L S e Bl LS Sl Bl o BN e §Po S e il
e ddePred Le cipinic Qyir bl Linl L e /ﬁ’u{‘af Wl L L
e bGPy A (b e U BB, )
St L e B nad i
_€_U’JUJL;HW”LJ‘BA,%ng,Juu,uugJLrw;gnjm%Q?:JJL(G (I
LG SE Pt 2 Bz e e N1t L5 S it S s ()

_c.t"’/?;w"/o'/.
S el IS L T §E A et e A F E L FensBed b F St )
s

Sz e P gt 2d b L n ke bb S 2B s 1 b G (V)
urde

FrPks T

L FrP Sy as80m oS F6L 5 o ol PP TS0 TR S S M Sl F 8T
RGP e AL Qb SAS TS e 2 sl e /Gl S

P R NI T B ﬁ/Jﬁg/&}JﬂrL ST St st 2 5L st ot e 3T
L et Qi TS A3 st B Lol e 70 L pBGsitin L e o PEPSS S
S LD S LN




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Méawuwéﬁdwmu”Jts.sm,-‘aMm/ﬂut2,/&wu)&aug@ﬂumfﬂubiut/&{ CEO
st B L e b IS UL s L3 CEOU ey roc bt S0 P UInCEOL 22 JF¥,
e & }ﬁr&mé&fmcwz/ju@@gw"ﬁ%ﬁ+Wuujwﬂu:;ub»b/ui-‘uu&’%w kLUt

e $nfes§ CEOL LL S ETAL ks ,@}r)@‘?ém/ux);ﬁ/j‘{g{‘atuu’ﬁ?t/

Sl Akl c S SR bl USRS R bl g VLG CEO
&wuf”ww/ﬂuﬁ_{_msKL/&;"L&’J&w&m:«iu‘eﬂu‘,u&@midf;//‘v/uﬁmcmc,o&
Ay LSS st AL b et & S il e bt e\ ICEO el S

-‘au/Q“auLJ},ug&

LSS

AP L8 et g,-:,&wg LSSl S AL i A IS p L i e bl
FIE GG e At otin iy G g L 42 (b5 o Qe GHEL I SBL U K Eaie 31
/?u}”(&&ﬁ/??;u? ‘L(y/“ii'gug;%)w%ubJu}u,uwﬂguKz;_!i&d}/@uw_%u"*’;u}/.fawfqﬁ
~96Lqﬁ/(7'%1£mmw;w

b/

U162 - QI S PGl ni ol TehudPe (A1 e Pl it e bl GBE S
Ll ,C‘t?zfw}u,,,wéul_‘ajggﬁméiéfcé“%%fu{,l+gc/d/ggﬁjzupr;,,;duj; ung(‘a&u&?/e,g
e Ll i iy o has S PP FE St E L S e (il e Mgl 2 3L
PRV PN I DS L P PR )

Iﬂ./.ajgjg

GG ¥ (CBS) s KByt QUL LY 20237 30/ 20248, 255 24U
e FN UGB 185 s, A s 7o A ey el L SIS S F L1
o lons pE e bbostd et s S K.,,m,dweéﬂ”/ﬁ&w@i/; S el Gl ST
e b PSP sy KL L Lid w2023 7300420248520 AU Tes

U LA bl st QL
_Lagﬂuj&}}'&/u:u;/lf’f&yL/)lah‘&bfﬁgj’{jé/ VJL/UQ[UM?K&QLL&'C’/LLJ.TLJW‘//@{)

)




Annual Report 2024

Jlnstitute of Cost and Mangement International.s/ Institue of Chartered Accountants of PakistanLd’g}WLJ’

Ju;/l)lu:}uulﬁtagfybﬁ'){f d/:"uﬁdﬁzi "Best Corporate and Sustainability Award@.bjlg
LSS A § i Bt e Plapd L& 0 et 3EL Fdl e K b bbe b
LA DL L TP 933Gt 250 g S Bl S Foirt, e Jinitl UL TL
Us AL Stz oot S3iAar S e (1 oy KL Ly oL S b bl it

e FL L L BL s ENJ IS ket I F S e S KB b
Midelon L eI o2y IPL e op P12 2Tt S AL G i
PR Sy ISy X I SR Y o WIS Y U B A T

Ul 7 b b UL &ZMLA,/Z

S

J'-gd}d&%ﬁfﬂﬂ)ﬁﬁ@éé&u’@C;'lgKdi/%@lé_m&W'ﬁCode of Corpporate Governance, 2019
G101 e BB sao b 5 A AL S S SRS u‘fzw SN RS-
LA u’?w/)gcwlél&:lb:fftat“lz&?/o@u’%’ﬁd-Q@a’/’lgd"(@x’ﬁ.w?(ﬁcu%ypﬂ?d:ué;&"cn;)&u&?
_{_Cﬁ/j‘fﬁjué.s%r,g’ ;u,u.;ul;ﬁiu")fq;g;(/fﬁ(@ bnle LB 5B

7868 (CEO) AT K1

e R IE 7 i e P e b6 6 CEO e (el i Tond L sp 8%
LY CEOB e (nedbbat LB G B or gt L SLo ke bbondl bl 7o, £ IR
LUR AL oA o KBS So PEE i Sd Bl PR St i St i S S T A
sl F OIS CEOf+WL.U:LW?JG,gutd’u«?}"d,ugJ@fg{uﬁwij‘yg/&jw AN
e LT

/¥ CEQusl Chairman

-‘L/’),.AJ‘K'L&&?}(L/’C 6,000 L Sl b, LA U in Bt i Fe b8l sl F ot 2
U1 G-t S A sl e A S S L S LSkl & S WS B S et 2
e ol BB U UL e F B A6 TS A et GRS e
e I G e P S




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Fre (56 8EEs Tz « MWL L G EUSF L L(CORIS I 1G b K2l 27
< METRAL S L P .wg/Kz+J/Gﬁw&m&nuﬁ&r/@;é}fau}uicf.‘g);zc%Kdt
Seiieddait d o £ PN ST S ISP LY K10 aah = SPRRNE S O
S Posd Gl P SIS ey L g o hrons el 3L CSRUEEL 75— LS i

LG EE bl

IS ALK E
sl QUL Pl Ut U ea 0y L0 bine o\l Ll St 2135 ngw'%u&{
e G St N oo e Lo stttz

S K1 Ses poe b BB S L 35571558 ok P Voot A S e a1
et el e 2L Uk s SN Iy ES

Vet s /P61 L I E T ey AL em? S e oGt 316
e e AL U K6z s T AL

w27 St E | (1)

WEBAT DS e | (1)

Hoeur | 372 i

souiber | 271 -

B 8eirie | 185 J
;’f&r)uu%q};f 271 )

UL |6

£ S MAP U s R e K (MAPYE LTI E g £ UG
Nl s m2l Gt Ao r 65T o SIS EA S g Ko bl BRI Bl U
e OIS EHLL ctoe 03 ey Ko B P Ce 2 T S s g 37

)




Annual Report 2024

ZM )
(.};/y..;'@,,b/"’i‘ﬁ/jlﬁ“‘a8/1&&5»{()':2_/&’/&:4)5'/;’:{‘VJWJ}P@;/IU}’J;ﬁ/.&gu@u"{uﬁ[&ﬁbﬂ/
_mﬁ»’wewKéfu'iuﬂwidm’w;-‘a C{}u'//(gK//lé}ﬁ)‘zd.’f'}uawmd/'5'44:&@[.@«%

ER O S O Lot

*»

11 HapuT| e okt
11 A qud}(‘ btz

11 A6 %«;;5ut5/)pﬂ}4

1/1 A Akl

b b7

I/f,)i

bipladisig uLg/lj,'+y/J{4/K 20247 30 P S5 TL G Lj‘fzmmgd{ S ELING303
FdS Pk ST G e L3812 L Ly G S F et e W L L6, Pk
b U361 202585208 sB e el si L F G e § 20257 300021

Y Slescy ¥

JJI£+&/ UC'/L?J( 7&&{ 4.52.//’)5.;’&?/?4_ +Corporate Social RespnsibiltyCSR)S /s ibisy 6
LSk PE A AL IPL B SRt fod e\ S U e LTe U p Ao
o S s S B e o s S JIBIAUer S S B, S e d £
AL P

S8k /u:ézido’fgﬁﬂwﬂ;g L )xm,cusJ&}é-_u%@gguﬁuﬁutﬁidL&@u,}z:Jwﬂw
CSR{L}JL‘L8/:)’[2»47l;'u.'fJW&JU‘.!,@‘JV‘Cd”/"/l,ggmLW/,/&J}CLgédﬂdl.'a'»cLl'/./:fJ/ 2L
S F e P Ve b3 e i B U W ine s e 2
Bt B 2GS fore P QI LUPL et a3 L s Ea P AL Gt
_g_tnux’ﬁfu);;




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

b n~
. b
.gf:»,,l

:/uff%o‘//lgK:«l.)"”&lgLj}dl./)|a&bf&i]¢ﬂﬁ)ﬁ%;ﬁ@@ﬁé¢&uquniza,gfcd/’;M}J&’j@b@’/}f&‘i‘uﬁ
_‘LLC/’JfMUa?de/J}{//'?uf url)?'u’-é.nﬁ’:‘u’ﬂ,ibigi&57_98/;16/ by st

TG Ut = rl ol

3

414 AT $F st

4/4 A s Rretn

4/4 // %;5ulf5/;.»7
414 a S IE
2/4 A oLt

‘3”{ b"«)"fu"’/.,g/yo’//(’pg‘ﬁ/@/.:&’?/ﬂoquﬁb"«fﬁUV/J'd‘@(d‘h/%LL/&&/{/@’:G}(/’@JBA{L&Q?T
JSTay 2 s ol A g n ST LI 3 bl U262 2019 20 ey KT L L
U PPt sl 1 o 2L

FdSdu

(Ut I e F QUL FL L P So L ete s E S 61 p St P B S Sl (U
L8 FEE Ao e oSSt PRSI, e a7 B Bk §des
e AT P

;lﬁd/:)?ufu;*wl o rtéu’/f'

11 21517 S ;‘w%t%

111 e I

11 A

11 A S aeb b
111 e dusutdots
0/ A o loglEl it

t0)




Annual Report 2024

GEHIBL Fesleth S 1883 2017 L 17 Gt AR I LF ¢

NP SIS R
L F e B S e AL SR E e Pt e pen
_ujfd;;lbuﬁ/&}’LUU'PK&L}LL&&MJ&VV

ol s
RS e L ot Sl o s FEe ot urte LK Pt Eiun
- oﬁ/&:;f/}f@}‘&f%};lﬁé&iﬁ:ﬁ%ﬂj

NS VIR,
s eSS AP 5 e BYoL LA N5 STi s 2024/ 3001

)D."jd/.:f'}""c«?ufurﬂ?' = u"/CWLJ}..{/’U

5/5 U ooyl

5/5 ATEE g LG etz

5/5 At UsRorblon

5/5 }{/’lju}{; %«;)wlf?’u.ﬂ"//

5/5 AT Foshtz

5/5 AT S gtz

5/5 AT Akt

5/5 Azt dru it

5/5 A E i dusuldcts




AL-ABBAS @

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

(64

cuz&gcd'/:dmd;L,z?uﬁ;:s,w,ugan;’zfc¢LL;» dﬂf.ﬁuiwpivjuéww“’wéuuf ! fi/jéu'%{
Z b g LI LK N5 -t S L i sl st B Sl 78 e S S St e
e b3 B AL U el St U2 S Bl 1S Lo AR T Ut

[“ "/'é?gLJ{‘gzg‘cC/u{l“AZ:L/:@GAKJ[?/:“U’%?JULM&L@Jaﬂbd)w‘luy@'Jﬁgﬁﬁgéu;’}&u'
dse 31 lq,?‘aL"@.L:Jo'/’lgc,f,wGg(uy}fofu!éﬁgaufgﬁé.n&% LUt G UMb L0
e Qe L LK SIS HFE AL LS sl LT

AL S P ohir ol §2 L Sba St & SAEIKIA L Sy e oo S a3
e

S G, S S UL L e L (3B it PSR E S iy
_‘Lt'/dﬁd;b}’/?%?wkf&'{ééé-&@gf;&%é.n L

‘e bl Sl
A AL UL 2328 201 T b AL A b Tl R J3F r  p Js ee blog
M/Jw,ﬁ'fJuf@’gu‘f‘lé&gnqwi,w£M+Jufale/ui'jv£ WAES L e grn

5

-L/?

c[)dgu’li,f/},’_Jﬁ':«@l&w@'ﬁ/}féid}%}l;f@g}]ﬁ yo'//@c_,Jﬁﬁ'@gu:}ﬁédg/.ﬁb?”wi_&r&ﬂd/ﬁd
.w’m&.mtwué(j’%@,MJJ@JLJ%@PJ&QWQ)M&: eSS L s B ol
s JS b ta8.ma3 L

:%:}&/‘{/’15..575;1

St 2313 st J5 13 @l 2 (1)t Q) S L S 2185 L o
@ﬂmf?&&&fa}wﬁs@wf;{;wm;m Fe uw,;m,::;c_,gymdzf,uﬂic,gw,g‘/s»uécﬁ
EYAS Y

WYY,

()3 G T

AT () 2057 (6L ) 5 AasEig o

(1) 1 AT TS




Annual Report 2024

BEUE T 2L Sl S 3 b1 F Ut QLU B LB e Ely S
b A PAMENL e 3 QS ZE N 2 L PP st b S g b P (Bt K ks
-4‘;6/)/}#]’%}:"4 be/V'LJJE/‘C/&éZ:L

eGP Lo (U F 12l Li G S38 2 b oe prpd Lot 18 U i /s ),
/.‘;T‘%IcLyofa/u;;{{vTJ:L/E@/?JQ:glﬁa:LJLaJLJ&jz lﬂ)éédVL':LT%anC;/&Ujfﬂ/
_LLL?’}?;‘;J:E‘/()AU::«GJU’rLEJLJ’/’}'/.&’(,é?/)%/?”/'ﬂjkaV/H;(&WLJJ&H;J/’J}U@:/-LL&{ZTL U7

St B e & e b P 36 QUL AT e e b L sl S
STl el S SN _éuu@y‘f’” D S SJ# sl 5P UK B S S iy
‘La(};?%uLa'ﬁ:@l’xuﬁo/ﬂd/uﬂtaguﬂ’-/di/cgﬁ/?TL/?;/:«L'Ka!&Luluﬁu}g},}bﬂ%&/‘/?fgﬁ){

SurP B, - Lo oo St fA PN P TISF L 2SS 2P a2 ML A
e Ry I LIS S T e # IS

<J’JJJWJMJJL(t;ufJquué_ﬁm/ﬂumﬁ@tf'u;f’éL;éut&t&@}u:éwmgédemd%{mugﬁ
el Lo LTE G ot ST e £ Lo LTS T K3 B S 50

L& 1y b §i-e 3oy et Yy St S22l L3l et B Q 2 uTind
R E AL L e 2 Qb S L S

o256
2e nJ - NO OBJECTION CERTIFICATE (NO@),/“ALJL@@{}MQ//JJ@;u;_»,/g@u/é_&{
J'ﬁ;é_nd’((K.?ngngf[uﬁJVLbé_TrK&:«/‘/fuf/g"/?ﬂ“gdnﬁﬁiﬁé_mj’?fﬁ/?ﬁlﬁﬁ(KL@)}‘"'(./W
SN A TEN G et TIPS ERPRIE TN~ A B IR F A P

_LaLszZT/&/CKA@}Jy

st Tl TS AW e Vo wie TS P Pt Ul Z e s S Gl bost
SLtebpien fomateul el d L1 SFnEl L1 Tkt SeS G20 L
St G SIS




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

:«t‘&l&ﬁ

Uit fE

/Mﬁm.%:@%gcbréd}uﬁfﬁgu}“, U F U G b2 1 B § i E S| (2024-28 L 1si T
ool St Gdif bt Sem 15, B bor L Sl UL FF e o ST RS S U520

-l

Uil e CISEF B 6.8 JEGE- o E ity At §Gie oS bid™ Ui mil &
‘.‘L/‘:'&K:JéuUV}GU:Lt:&?L//(?/}’L/d}%u;guﬁ”d*/.JJ?‘.LLM%(?/{?‘J@/&UT/.LZ)QLLu‘

I PG sl L Usiibe P (b U0 S 3uT L SR L Y5 S e
S QTS e mz s ok 238 G o 1.08 0T g e I3 Fssdi i
el 6 e i Sa T il F 313562 Fed SSEA LIS L St

Kl G SE EFIL i hit e Seaa§ Sl fe 202429210 W6 BISL I3 on 36
GNL U m i UTes e tn I AZ S e 31t = d (LS 71 b Stz e YUt
-Jqﬁ;yf{d&/r_,,w:go.5o4ﬂéo. NP I SIS LR (s P

Iz wz L 2L AL IS gL d/”u:/méggféutémﬁwLU/éwLJ"Jf
(PR Sh i 2 LSS P 11 s S T Sain bR UL TS E Tt
(P §uS3es S AR S e Lo (il oo il Gl G fon 230150
e bl Sl T S, Uy e

223751

P e8P L bond §om WS 120 PSR EL St e tlfue 2 328 #7104 2024-25)1
Ate Lo S8 F 0L S  e S b P U G e B b Bt A B S S T
Lol Buie 5L =t e U K St £ 2 o\ Ko 5358 b B Sl 1S
by

mg}yKJyJQ@g.ugcuﬁu}fim/sugk;.,,wé&iakﬁg.péthﬁauﬂvéf:ﬁfé_éédﬁ“ui&%{u@f
e bR e S

109

rergery

B,




Annual Report 2024

2023 2024 ;/;K(}yt
------------ J:J'/.Z?L}J--- -—--
10,283,856 11,398,163 Yy
(6,047,743) (8,233,703) Yy
4,236,113 3,164,460 Cu
(379,180) (1,197,030) AE
(66,311) (72,901) =L AIGE
3,790,622 1,894,529 P
(200,339) (111,900) LA b Ao
(167,807) (194,389) S
195,566 199,753 T
3,618,042 1,787,993 S
(175,361) (194,037) 5
3,442,681 1,593,956 Sy

A b S AL G 3 it S B S G B a3 10 B Lt L 2L )5
—e Lol

enl UL ozt e 320850 20 6P e i g et o 2
JELL S o ju:/w&gz,}&f? L ATE et J.;Tﬂt‘_!n)uluﬁuﬁuid/uﬁ,wuﬁ_bﬁl._p/ e
bbby

bk SIS PO SIS e A HL AL iy 0B WP Bl S S
WV s ke piusd el V&g

Z
e Gl St smaa Sl ea £ upd Su e S Eme

S22 850 ¢SSl Lo S i e 5L J"ALL/W{/}L@@AV@{ B
Jlfd;ﬁ“l,))?gK&{J?,T.u;Jtﬁu‘ﬂmuwﬁ,ﬁ/ﬁjvjvédﬁ"t¢ﬁ+¢1@tJLﬁjsﬁglJW¢ Fhe
Az p S PSS TN AL e P W5 e S8 TS T S b TV 5 S
S unti St

KL 30,210, A e LK% 26.268 5 Unl LT




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

2023 2024 9% JLJL
........ ( »/V;?Lu)_-_-_-“
3,805,260 4,836,875 oy
(3,062,524) (4,360,382) =31 )]
742,736 476,493 Ce b
(22,375) (16,189) ¢
(103,509) (106,031) A
616,852 354,273 Clrihise
(32,061) (33,924) =LA bl
(209,370) (314,534) I3
13,788 12,292 aThs
389,209 18,107 S
(145,477) (35,373) A
243,732 (17,266) i

1 3Lo1350.23, Ft b A0 bt S o $ S Bu27 1. B TS S U
=3 35 e I SaTi S SRI1eA La 23 3L (R bl e T o Filiter 20 26 KIBORA S
Ua&%dr‘lpglrd:?.ﬁ M/)J/?/}JJ‘L:%XJJL/U‘?KUR;U@%LL

Lo cdlespftc e afl2 L5 buda01y, Fited pu i fSL L erfimsied i A
Sl 28U guﬁ/g/?/,»ﬂwu:a?v‘u:mﬂ

.w"(d;; ’l
2023 2024 d/:);w/bl&
45,250 43,603 Nl | &y F SHlx
40,691 47,291 S sy

109




Annual Report 2024

S Ce

i VL AT e ey Pt L LGBty Boac b Loy St P2H
12526 e BlSniai2500 1y ey £ BB P 3e 1256 45250 4 i 20255,52022
F et PP B sB0G ... J- 202477 30 Ll P C S A b bisd = oL 7S
Ut 20255572805 b e UL S L e

e it S e ShSin g S DL P emiA I  UE B

...... UYL V——
1,550,682 S
5,434,556 VLl I B fF
(104,174) PToe 62023 o AP uBE
(434,058) FTBe s 2520240 Clsnt
(7,212) Y Clorr I L S S L IYL 0
6,439,794 Bt bt b

L de

eI e AL S A s, S G ) P S

; ,;»‘3()?/

2022-23 5 L= 8E VSFEIN 2 4004 14252 $uifs (EL L L£2023-24y0 8 oinert
S K 40 e 03022F Gl

At L s S PG 3E S Po B 8k r L U3 S Pr el S e el
e P L L FESE L P S

2022-23 2023-24 f;);KdeLg.
20227529 2023 912 Gt g
77 89 - lina$lsl g
68.553 82.918 L S
400,820 489,122 (SIS
10.52 10.26 LA
42,175 50,184 (STl L

42.598 43,029 (S50}




AL-ABBAS

SUGAR MILLS LTD.

WA LRE

2023 2024

......... R
4,004,280 1,780,554 St
(319,663) (229,872) A
3,684,617 1,550,682 St B
212.22 89.31 S oud Bl

.,,gw;/&g/npm’;ég,@@@vy;@g&ﬁp%wﬁ1 6.5087 K3 Iy sy JuTd e S
e BB 1 6l Al 202401 2023 3T ;:'-mg@.dwug AL S

2023 2024 JY o
10,614.63 | 11,439.68 L =31 8T
3,954.6 |  5,068.10 AL Pb-QuTe Sy Bl banss jE
4,974.88 |  3,611.63 AL bt
400428 |  1,780.55 e S
3,684.62 |  1,550.68 L g

_Zggjlb}ﬁ)géf:%zﬁ&éfL/Jnd/lg/:ic«lg'j'd/lééﬁéﬂgfujﬁ{/JMﬂLL}lJ)/u:uﬁJf%AUL(Gé“::

514D 1

S 825,05 (ool £ e Sl Ford L o 2l et U G B us L i dl L 2023-24
e QI a7 T L JUs2ifa Sess JSuTs

eyl L LA GRS I habuime SoSUsh S So S5 e S P B ST
ATt U e Pl e s S Qb S L Pl




@ Annual Report 2024
b
¢J£Jv‘/’lgd/1/{/”5

doie ST L AL 20247 30JLAAL = i A Uy &Sl preslipe il s
..ujtaj//ﬁu:uﬁ

LSt ena b\ L S bl 2t S S S ol KB e 2l ki
g "/j//{ cquféw =S 1 wfc«ﬁﬁ—@"fd“bﬁ ouﬁ;ce’d/uf O/Lt/-e—&&kgdﬁjwuﬁfgﬁg
L el bl E L

Sl PRI LU bt AL sl P2 i Pk 2061 o QB s
etz xS S el S S HS

Lt HL 3l G i o S S S Db bt Ak WG o 2 25
Ui e

u/’ng:«"‘

Fg e QB ST w2 5,08 R il LSl ey UL =S GRS pind 2023-24
Mg S pin e t S5 S Y U L el 2L 20 ST 05 b Lol £ b L L&
SEEL L L5 itz wyﬁgﬁ%‘.d/(ﬁiégwd;/fféﬁf/?él)ﬁc LIt Sl F e
e LIS s e ST

Lécduagﬁ-%JK/JUﬂ;ﬁaL}f’”uLfbﬁuLﬁu'uﬁd)t&u(u’}%g?d/@{'fcﬂﬂ' 63afd/dfuful“/@
et ed e ale A8t e Jestife s 5L

Ll VaF g G506 8L FL o1 Gl E il Ut SES AU LUt 202425
—c ol B G

e GE A e SO I e SRR S e S NG B 3 LIS
et B b st G U S b e 65




AL-ABBAS
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FORM OF PROXY

1/We

of

being a member of AL-ABBAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED, holding of

ordinary share(s), hereby Appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us, and on my / our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held at Movenpick Hotel, Karachi on Thuesday, January 28, 2025 at 11:30 am.
and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed under my / our hand this day of 2025.

(Member’s Signature on
Rs. 5.00 Revenue Stamp)

(Signature should agree with
the specimen signature
negotiated with the Company)

Shareholders folio No

CDCA/cNo
CNIC No

Signed by the said (Name) in the presence of:

Witnesses

1, Signature 2, Signature

Name Name
CNIC/ Passport No. CNIC/ Passport No.
Address Address

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is entitled to appoint another member as Proxy
to attend and vote instead of him/her. A Corporation or a company being a member of the Company may appoint
any of its officers, though not a member of the Company.

2. Proxies must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time appointed
for the meeting.

3. The signature on the instrument of proxy must conform to the specimen signature recorded with the Company.

4. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A. For attending the Meeting:

a) In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per
the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original Passport along
with participant ID number and the Account number at the time of attending the meeting.

b) In case of corporate entity, the Boards resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall
be produce [unless it has been provide earlier] at the time of the Meeting.

B. For appointing Proxies :

a) In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per
the CDC Regulation, shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.

b) The proxy form shall witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on
the form.

) Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

d The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board's resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be furnished
[unless it has been provided earlier] along with proxy form to the Company.
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SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Date

Folio No.

Name of Shareholder
F/H Name

Address

Bank Account Details for Payment of Cash Dividend
(Mandatory Requirement as per the Companies Act, 2017)

Dear Shareholder,

This is to inform you that in accordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash
shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder.
Please note that giving bank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and in order to comply with this regulatory
requirement and to avail the facility of direct credit of dividend amount in your bank account, you are requested to
please provide the following information:

Details of Shareholder

Name of shareholder

Folio / CDS Account No.

CNIC No.

Cell number of shareholder

Landline number of shareholder, if any

Details of Bank Account

Title of Bank Account

International Bank Account Number PK (24 digits) (Kindly provide your accurate IBAN

(IBAN) "Mandatory" number after consulting with your respective bank branch since in case of any
error or omission in given IBAN, the company will not be held responsible in
any manner for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment).

Bank's name

Branch name and address

It is stated that the above?mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, | / we will immediately
intimate Participant / Share Registrar accordingly.

Signature of shareholder

You are requested to kindly send this letter immediately duly filled in and signed by you along with legible photocopy
of your valid CNIC at our address, Share Registrar Services, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC
House, 99-B, Block B, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Mian Shahrah?e?Faisal, Karachi. 74400, Pakistan.
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SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Form for Video Conference Facility

The Company Secretary,

M/s. Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited;
Pardesi House, Survey No.2/1,
R.Y.16, Old Queens Road,

Karachi.

I/we, of being the
registered shareholder(s) of Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited under Folio No. / CDC Participant
ID No. and Sub Account No. CDC Investor
Account ID No., and holder of Ordinary / Preference Shares, hereby request for video conference
facility at for the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 28 January,
2025.

Shareholder’s Signature:

Date:

Note: Copy of CNIC must be furnished with the Form
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SUGAR MILLS LTD.

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's notification S.R.0 470(1)/2016 dated 31 May, 2016,
the shareholders of Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited in 34th AGM of the Company held on January 28, 2025 had accorded
their consent for transmission of annual reports including annual audited accounts, notices of annual general meetings
and other information contained therein of the Company through CD or DVD instead of transmitting the same in hard
copies. The shareholders who wish to receive hard copy of the aforesaid documents through courier or soft copy
through email are requested to fill this form and send it to the Company Secretary / Share Registrar.

PLEASE NOTE THAT RECEIPT OF THE HARD COPY OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH COURIER OR SOFT COPY VIA
EMAIL IS OPTIONAL AND NOT COMPULSORY.

STANDARD REQUEST FORM

Date:

The Share Registrar

CDC House-99B, Block B!,
S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-faisal,
Karachi-74400

Pursuant to the directions given by the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 470(1)/2016 of
May 31,2016, I, Mr./Ms. S/o, D/o, W/o hereby consent to
have Al-Abbas Sugar Mills Limited's Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting through the
below mentioned mode.

Hard copy through courier

Name of Member/ Shareholder
Folio/ CDC Account Number
Registered mailing address

Soft Copy through email address

Name of Member/ Shareholder
Folio/ CDC Account Number
Email address

It is stated that the above mentioned information is true and correct and that | shall notify the Company and its Share
Registrar in writing of any change in my registered mailing address or email address or withdrawal of my consent.

Signature of the Member / shareholder

é
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Head Office:
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E-mail: sugar@aasml.com
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